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Vision

Mission

To be recognised and acknowledged  by our stakeholders 
nationally and internationally as the foremost business 
development finance institution providing financial  services.

To empower our clients by providing broad-based financial 
services to enable their growth and success:
 Through

  fostering supportive client relationships
 combined with

  prudence and competence
 to become

  a financially self-sustaining institution.

To economically empower Swazi entrepreneurs through the 
provision of accessible and sustainable financial services. 

Statement of Purpose

VISION, MISSION & STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

  (ii)
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His Majesty King Mswati III

Her Majesty The Queen Mother

HIS MAJESTY KING MSWATI III & HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN MOTHER
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On behalf of His Majesty’s Government, I  
would like to congratulate the Board, 
Management and Staff of FINCORP for 

achieving such a strong financial and operational 
performance during a period of great economic 
depression. The Global Economic Crisis has highlighted 
the importance of bringing the SME Sector to the fore-
front of economic development because by nature, SME 
Development can transform emerging economies and 
empower people at the lower end of domestic economies 
to better withstand the exogenous economic shocks 
associated with fluctuations in international markets.

Government is committed to creating an enabling 
environment for a vibrant SME Sector in Swaziland and 
to that end, re-affirms the desire to ensure that FINCORP 
receives the optimum level of support that will enhance 
the institution’s outreach and impact. I am pleased to 
note that during the past two years, the Government 
of Swaziland has made an additional equity injection of 
E50 million in order to strengthen the financial capacity 
of the organisation and has  further committed to assist 
the Corporation in obtaining a Line of Credit through 
existing bilateral relations. 

As a parent Ministry, we would like to urge the Board, 
Management and Staff of FINCORP to continue to 
explore ways and means to efficiently and effectively 

serve the SME Sector in Swaziland, including the 
possibility of establishing a branch network optimally 
distributed throughout the Country. His Majesty’s 
Government is committed to providing an enabling 
environment which encompasses the enactment of 
favourable laws, policies and institutional support 
structures for small businesses to thrive in Swaziland.

Once again I congratulate the Board, Management 
and Staff of FINCORP for consistently pursuing the 
mandate of providing access to financial services to 
SMEs whilst ensuring that the organisation remains 
sustainable notwithstanding the prevailing difficult 
economic conditions. We will continue to closely 
monitor the activities of the organisation and render 
our unreserved support to its aims and objectives.

Hon. Majozi V. Sithole
Minister of Finance

“As a parent Ministry, 
we would like to urge 

the Board, Management 
and Staff of FINCORP to 
continue to explore ways 

and means to efficiently and 
effectively serve the SME 

Sector in Swaziland...”

STATEMENT FROM THE HONOURABLE MINISTER OF FINANCE
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Tibiyo Taka Ngwane is proud to be a Shareholder 
in FINCORP which was formed in 1995 
through the vision of His Majesty King Mswati 

III. It was started to play a major role in addressing the 
increased poverty level that manifests itself in various 
parts of the country, particularly in the rural areas. Over 
the years FINCORP has been instrumental in changing 
the country’s grassroots development landscape by 
providing access to financial services to marginalised 
members of society.

We have noted with great interest the introduction 
of a number of products designed to cater for the 
needs of aspiring entrepreneurs at the grassroots level 
with a view of bring them into mainstream economic 
activities. The Downstream Agricultural Development 
Programme is one good example in which FINCORP 
has actively participated, namely under the Komati 
Downstream Development Programme (KDDP) and 
the Lower Usuthu Irrigation Project (LUSIP) by making 
credit accessible to members of the community. These 
programmes are commendable as they will ensure that 
the country does not only improve the entrepreneurial 
orientation amongst its citizens, but also become self-
sustainable in food production.

In line with Tibiyo Taka Ngwane’s mandate of nation 
building, we encourage the Board, Management and Staff 
of FINCORP to look into ways of promoting agricultural 

diversification by looking at the entire agricultural value 
chain to see how more entrepreneurs can be assimilated 
into the programme in order to facilitate increased 
participation in agro-processing and also maximise 
productivity. Similarly other business activities that have 
a great potential of transforming people’s lives should be 
explored. This will make the country a major producer  
and net exporter of agricultural products, which will 
contribute tremendously to economic growth.

On behalf of the Main Committee of Tibiyo Taka 
Ngwane, I would like to congratulate the Board, 
Management, and Staff of FINCORP for the meaningful 
contribution towards Nation Building as manifested by 
the outreach to over 60 000 Swazi beneficiaries who 
have received cumulative loan funding in excess of E1.6 
Billion since inception.  

I would also like to reaffirm our commitment in 
continuing to contribute our expertise and knowledge 
in Nation Building by strengthening the institutional 
capacity of FINCORP.

Absalom T. Dlamini
Managing Director – Tibiyo TakaNgwane

STATEMENT FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR OF TIBIYO TAKA NGWANE

“...I would like to congratulate the 

Board, Management, and Staff 

of FINCORP for the meaningful 

contribution towards Nation 

Building as manifested by the 

outreach to over 60 000 Swazi 

beneficiaries who have received 

cumulative loan funding

 in excess of E1.6 Billion 

since inception.”
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INTRODUCTION

Driven by the mandate bestowed on the 
organisation by its founding shareholders’ 
it is pleasing to note that the Swaziland 

Development Finance Corporation Limited 
(FINCORP) continues to grow, both in outreach and 
developmental impact.  The organisation has grown 
to become one of the leading enterprise development 
agencies, not only in Swaziland but also on the 
global stage. This has been confirmed by several 
independent research work conducted by various 
local and international agencies. Organisations such 
as Association of African DFIs (AADFI) and Euro 
Market Research Centre (EMRC)  have honoured the 
organisation for its outstanding performance.

Clearly such success would not have been realised  had 
it not been for the good working relationship that exists 
amongst  all stakeholders. I must make special mention 
of the stakeholders, namely the Swaziland Government 
and Tibiyo Taka Ngwane; the Board of Directors; 
Management, Staff and our treasured clients.   

The diminished Foreign Direct Investment in Swazi-
land, coupled with the weakened performance of the  
local economy due to the global financial crisis has 
elevated the significance of the discourse of focusing 
more on domestic investment and in particular 
the promotion of SMEs. FINCORP is inundated 
with loan applications from aspiring entrepreneurs.

 

More and more Swazis are turning to income 
generating activities. 

Micro, Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (MSMEs) 
across sectors ought to constitute a central pillar of 
any inclusive economic growth policy of any domestic 
economy. SMEs are universally acknowledged as major 
contributors to economic and social development. 
They provide the main source of jobs and income 
for citizens.  Consequently Development Finance 
Institutions (DFIs) such as FINCORP will be 
fundamental to the rejuvenation and stabilisation of the 
domestic economies.
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Led by the Board of Directors, FINCORP is fully 
committed to the principles of good corporate 
governance and has in particular inculcated a culture 
of “open door policy and transparency” at all levels 
of the organisation. Clients have unlimited access 
to Senior Management and the entire operational 
hierarchy of the organisation.  We fully embrace the 
King Code of Corporate Governance and emphasise 
business ethics, transparency, honesty and enterprise- 
wide risk management.  The Board is conscious of the 
need to improve the skills and knowledge of the 
members in the area of corporate governance and, as 
such, undertakes to keep abreast with the constantly 
changing landscape of corporate governance. 

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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“...I am confident that with the 

productive and resourceful 

team of fellow Directors we 

shall conscientiously guide the 

organisation to a bright future.”
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During the year under review, the organisation arranged 
a workshop for all Board Members which was held in 
Pigg’s Peak. It was designed specifically to interrogate 
key elements of King III and Strategic Plan Formulation 
and Implementation. The workshop was facilitated by 
renowned co-author and member of the King III Audit 
Committee, Dr. Len Konar. 

OVERVIEW

The domestic economy has, over the year, been 
somewhat subdued as the effects of the global 
meltdown impacted upon international trade resulting 
in heavily diminished customs receipts. Invariably most 
countries that have been affected by the meltdown 
then have to find ways and means of compensating for 
the resultant financial shortfalls which then directly 
affects productive use of funds, such as investment in 
infrastructure and other development initiatives.

On a positive note, interest rates remained relatively 
low throughout the year and inflation also remained 
at a single digit for the entire year. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS

FINCORP has, throughout its sixteen (16) years  of 
existence, continued to strike an optimal balance 
between a positive developmental impact and 
maximising shareholder value by providing an excellent 

service to the unbanked section of society in order to 
enable them to get out of poverty with great dignity.  
We continue to roll out innovative and accessible 
products for the unbanked in a bid to increase wealth 
for this segment of the population that is traditionally 
excluded from mainstream economic activities.

Interest income for the year under review increased 
by 2% from E54.6 Million to E55.5 Million. This was 
largely driven by the increase in the gross loan portfolio 
from E360 Million to E503 Million. Operating expenses 
declined by 8% as a result of improved cost containment 
initiatives. This is a modest growth and is positively 
correlated to loan portfolio size over the year. 

FUTURE STRATEGY

The hallmark of most successful organisations is the 
continuous ability to scan the operating landscape 
and innovate by consistently striving for excellence. 
Ingenuity, innovation and flexibility will continue to 
guide FINCORP as we usher a new strategic plan that 
will guide the operations of the organisation from 
next financial year to up 2017.   

The main focus shall be the consolidation of the lessons 
learnt over the decade and a half since the organisation 
was formed.  There is no doubt that FINCORP has 
amassed a significant amount of industry knowledge 
to be in a good position to design products and 

services that best meet the developmental needs of 
target clientele. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would therefore like to thank all local and 
international partners for the assistance rendered 
to the organisation. Special regard goes to the 
Shareholders, Management and Staff for the 
commitment they have displayed in performing their 
respective responsibilities.  It still remains our main 
priority as an institution to bring financial services 
closer to the Swazi people living in rural areas and it is 
our fervent hope that the shareholders will assist the 
organisation in this regard.

I want to acknowledge that my first three year term as 
Chairman of  FINCORP was a fruitful learning curve 
and as I enter my second term starting this financial year, 
I am confident that with the productive and resourceful 
team of fellow Directors we shall conscientiously guide 
the organisation to a bright future. 

Musa  L. Dlamini
Chairman of the Board
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Acting MD Mr. Dumsani Msibi (left) receiving FINCORP’s Best Performing Award from Chairman of the Association of African DFIs in Tanzania
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INTRODUCTION

As a Development Finance Institution (DFI), 
we have watched with great interest the 
manner in which the Global Financial Crisis 

has unfolded and its impact upon both  developing 
and developed economies. The impact of the 
economic downturn initially transcended into low-
income economies through very obscure channels 
as it was more evident in global leading economies.  

Meanwhile countries that relied heavily on commo-
dity export faced a sharp decline in prices.  On the 
other hand resource mobilisation has been particularly 
challenging, as most institutional investors treaded 
with caution thus holding on to their liquid resources.

Business activity has generally been subdued and 
the severity of the financial meltdown has been 
quite evident in most economic sectors with largely 
reduced investment in infrastructure and other large 

greenfield projects which generally create business 
opportunities for Small and Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs). Interestingly notwithstanding the difficult 
financial times, we have noted with great reassurance 
that our organisation remained quite strong during 
the financial year under review as manifested by  
the significant upsurge by 34%  year on year of the 
gross loan portfolio reaching and unprecedented 
E500 Million mark set five years ago. 
 

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

During the year the organisation embarked on a mass communication 

drive internally and externally through selected media channels in 

an effort to make sure that the market understands our positioning, 

product offering and internal processes. We have also routinely shared 

selected success stories of entrepreneurs who benefited 

from FINCORP in an effort to motivate others.  

Dumisani J. Msibi
Acting Managing Director
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT (continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
A massive E324.1 Million was approved for new 
loans during the year.  The net operating  income 
for the organisation increased by 168% year on year, 
reaching E10.3 Million.  Increased financial income 
and cost containment played a much bigger role in the 
improvement of the organisation’s financial year end 
results.  Owing to the nature of our target clientele, 
namely Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs), 
who predominantly comprise of start up businesses, 
provision for loan impairments maintained relatively 
similar levels at E16.7 Million, albeit showing a slight 
decline of 11%.  This level of provisions represents  
3% of  the total gross loan portfolio which is within 
international best practice.

Loans totalling E492.0 Million were approved 
during the year under review, increasing cumulative 
approvals since inception to more than E1.6 Billion to 
more than 60 000 clients.

FIVE YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN 
IMPLEMENTATION

The end of the year under review marked the end of a 
five year strategic business plan launched in November 
2007.  I am pleased to note that a significant component 
of set strategic goals were achieved satisfactorily.  The 
strategic plan had five (5) Core Business Strategic 
Pillars;  seven (7) Enabling Strategies; thirty two (32) 
Programmes (wherein outcomes that generally will take 

18 to 36 months to realise); and 150 different projects 
(where outcomes would generally take 12 months or 
less to complete). Below is a brief analysis of the five 
core pillars:

(i) Agricultural Loan Portfolio Risk 
Management Strategy

 Terms and conditions of agricultural loan 
products were successfully revised in an effort to 
enhance risk mitigation on agricultural lending. 
The diversification of the agricultural portfolio by 
scaling up on non sugar cane farming related new 
approvals was successfully achieved but work 
continues to be carried out in identifying secure 
markets for farmers in order to increase scale and 
scope. 

(ii) Business Portfolio 
Consolidation and Growth 
Strategy
 The consolidation and growth strategy 
for business loans was successfully 
achieved as the portfolio has grown 
significantly to become a third of 
the total loan portfolio when it has 
historically been overshadowed by 
sugar cane lending. 
 
 (iii) Sugar Cane Portfolio 
Consolidation Strategy.
 The dynamics of the Sugar Cane 
Industry drastically changed when 

Government in conjunction with the European 
Union Commission introduced direct assistance 
to farmers in the form of subsidies of up to 70% 
of project cost and further offered rebates to 
existing heavily indebted farmers. Consequently 
instead of consolidating the portfolio, the 
organisation had to increase lending to the 
sector. Notably the organisation attracted new 
sugar cane financing business of more than  
E40 Million from both LUSIP and KDDP.  
Going forward, it is projected that there will 
still be more financing of sugar cane projects, 
in particular under the Lower Usuthu Irrigation 
Project. 

The Strategic Plan Team



(iv) Micro Loans Growth and Repositioning 
Strategy

 The Subsidiary Company was successfully  
formed and launched in early 2010 and has 
been well received by the market.  Growth of 
the portfolio has generally shown strong growth 
albeit constrained by limited funding resources.

(v) Insurance Agency Start-up and Roll-out 
Strategy. 

 The attainment of the Agency Status was con-
cluded as the Corporation signed an Agency 
Agreement with Swaziland Royal Insurance 
Corporation (SRIC).  FINCORP now receives a 
commission of 7.5% on all insurance premiums 
collected. At the moment, the premiums 
collection is largely underpinned by the credit life 
cover on all individual loans taken by clients at 
FINCORP and the Subsidiary Company, FIRST 
FINANCE. The long-term view is to transform 
the agency into a fully-fledged brokerage insur-
ance business.  

Other areas where meaningful progress has been made 
are the introduction of an Internal Audit Function; 
the Design of New Loan Products;  the Setting up 
of a Marketing & Advertising Sub-Department, 
currently manned by one officer; Strengthening of the 
Human Resource Management Support Structure, as 
well as the carrying out of an Enterprise Wide Risk 
Management Strategy and its continued monitoring.  
Key areas that have generally lagged behind include 
the containment of loan impairments, as well as fund 

raising and full deployment of an effective Asset 
Liability Management mechanism.  

RESOURCE MOBILISATION

The organisation raised the highest ever amount 
of loan funding on record during the year under 
review. A total of E113.9 Million for both short and 
medium funding was raised from various local and 
international funding partners. The previous year’s 
equity injection of E50 Million by Government has 
gone a long way towards improving gearing ratios, 
thus creating capacity to mobilise debt funding to 
finance the operations of the organisation.

GRASSROOTS EMPOWERMENT FUND

We continued to see a surge in the uptake of  loans 
under the E50 Million Grassroots Empowerment Fund 
(GEF), as borrowers took advantage of the reduced 
annual interest rate of prime minus 2%.  The loan size 
range under this Fund ranges between E10 001 to E100 
000 and is particularly targeted at start-up businesses 
in order to encourage more and more Swazi citizens to 
venture into entrepreneurship for self-employment and 
employment of others. Aggressive promotion of this 
product has been escalated extensively. The portfolio, 
as at the end of the year, stood at E10.8 Million. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

FINCORP has made a conscious decision to be actively 
involved in countrywide activities that promote 
entrepreneurship and enterprise development. To 

this end the organisation annually renders material 
and financial support to Entrepreneurship & Business 
Development Centre (EBDC) in the University of 
Swaziland; Junior Achievement Swaziland and The 
Business Place which is situated in the Lubombo Region. 
We strongly believe that if Swaziland is to effectively deal 
with the high rate of unemployment, entrepreneurship is 
the most logical route to take. We should all be concerned 
that less than 20% of the population  represent active 
SMEs in the country, and at FINCORP we pledge to 
make it our social contract to make a difference in the 
entrepreneurial orientation of our citizens.  
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
OPERATIONS

This financial year saw a seamless consolidation 
of the newly formed subsidiary company, FIRST 
FINANCE, as it entered its second year. Unparalleled 
portfolio growth of 141% compared to portfolio size 
at its launch was achieved with high profitability rates 
which contribute positively to the entire group. Plans 
are already underway to establish another branch at 
the next biggest city, Manzini, in order to efficiently 
and effectively service the high influx of new clients.

MASS COMMUNICATION

During the year the organisation embarked on a 
mass communication drive internally and externally 
through selected media channels in an effort to ensure 
that the market understands our positioning, product 
offering and internal processes. We have also routinely 
shared selected success stories of entrepreneurs who 
benefited from FINCORP in an effort to motivate            11
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT (continued)

others.  Feedback received from the general public 
suggests that people are currently more aware of the 
services offered by the organisation and now approach 
our offices with realistic and moderated expectations. 
The newly established Marketing Unit has achieved 
satisfactory results. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK

FINCORP has set itself a new ambitious target to grow 
the loan book to E1 Billion in five years and also to 
increase outreach to the target clientele significantly. 
Average annual portfolio growth is therefore projected 
to pitch at 15% and above throughout the five year 
period.  Of utmost priority shall be the strengthening 
of the credit appraisal mechanisms; post investment 
project management internal capacity; portfolio 
monitoring; and tracking mechanisms in order to 
enhance sustainability. Strengthening of Human 
Resource Management and development of new 
products and markets will take centre stage.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT 
SERVICES

In line with the efforts being made to elevate 
FINCORP to a sustainable organisation and also to 
increase our effectiveness on the market that we serve, 
the organisation has fully embraced the concept of 
creating a structure under which all loan beneficiaries 
shall receive mentoring and business development 
support. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I am heavily indebted to the entire FINCORP Staff 
for their unparalleled dedication and commitment 
to the delivery of  the very important mandate of the 
organisation.  The support and guidance obtained 
from the Board of Directors is much appreciated.   
I also wish to convey my humble thanks and grati- 
tude to the Minister of Finance and his Staff for 
the undivided attention rendered to FINCORP 
from time to time. The two shareholders of the 

 
organisation have rendered immense support.  Lastly,  
I wish to record my appreciation to FINCORP’s clients 
 for their unwavering co-operation and support.

Dumisani J. Msibi
Acting Managing Director

Management with FINCORP Farmers at the Smallholder Sugar Cane Growers Competition
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HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE Tracing the Origin, Rapid Transformation  and  
Future Strategic Direction  of the Organisation

INTRODUCTION

In April 2012, FINCORP ushered in a new era by 
adopting a new five year strategic plan spanning 
between 2012 and 2017. This is the third formal 

strategic plan since the inauguration of the institution 
in 1995. The first set dealt with set up modalities; the 
second focused on growth and consolidation; this new 
and current strategy addresses broadening product 
offering and enforcing sustainability.

Despite the complex and unrelenting pressures 
associated with MSME lending, the FINCORP has 
over the years shown a great ability to adapt to the 
needs of the market by continually modifying its 
operations and policies in order to adapt to the ever 
changing operating environment. Leading experts in 
organisational behaviour suggest that the hallmark of 
successful organisations are those that easily adapt to 
rapidly changing market conditions and seek innovative 
ways of doing business and FINCORP has accordingly 
been guided by the philosophy since inception.  

FORMATIVE YEARS

FINCORP was launched in Nov-ember 1995 with the 
primary objective of providing access to credit and 
business development services to Swazi entrepreneurs. 
It was then operating as a wholesale lending institution 
(known as Enterprise Trust Fund – ETF). Interestingly 
the core objectives of the organisation have remained 
unchanged yet the organisation has undergone rapid 
transformation. Our objectives, as they stood then, 
and as they stand now are as follows:

 To finance and promote the development of 
Swazi-Owned Enterprises;

 To support the expansion of loan financing to 
SMEs;

 To create jobs;
 To support the provision of business advisory 

services, training, monitoring, technical transfers 
and development of other products and services 
for SMEs;

Evidently, the main trust of the above listed objectives 
is job creation and accumulation of wealth. Against the 
backdrop of scarcity of jobs and inadequate access to 
credit, FINCORP is charged with the responsibility of 
seeing to it that aspiring Swazi entrepreneurs get the 
opportunity to start their own businesses and ultimately 
create jobs for themselves and other fellow citizens.

Maiden Board of Directors in 1996
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The organisation was initially designed to operate 
through financial intermediaries instead of being a 
direct lender. However, soon after realising that the 
number of credible financial intermediaries in the 
country was conspicuously low, FINCORP was quick 
to modify its lending model to allow even newly formed 
financial intermediaries to access  precious funding.
   
By 2002 the Fund had advanced 120 loans to Financial 
Institutions, Commercial Banks; and other Business 
formations; wherein the total portfolio stood at  
E54 million.  However, this inaugural modus operandi 
exhibited major limitations in as far as outreach 
and impact.  Scale and scope remained subdued. 
Challenges encountered included the following:

- Acute shortage of financial retailers to lend to;
- Group lending methodology was limiting 

portfolio growth;
- Poor performance of groups/associations was 

adversely affecting the quality of ETF’s loan 
portfolio; and

- The institutional structure, as a Trust Fund, 
limited ETF’s ability to mobilise funding for 
operations and growth.

TRANSFORMATION OF THE ORGANISATION

As a consequence of these identified challenges, the 
leadership of the organisation  commissioned a market 
research to ascertain the relevance and sustainability 

of the modus operandi.  The results of the research 
promulgated an irresistible adoption of direct retail 
lending alongside the wholesale lending window. This 
immediately called for change in the legal status to a 
legally registered private corporation. All else remained 
unchanged as the old standing mandate of creating 
access to credit remained very relevant. The orientation 
became rationalised towards an organisational 
design more engendered towards sustainability and 
profitability. The change of legal status was attained 
in record time frame never experienced among quasi 
Government owned institutions, primarily due to the 
co-operation of all key Stakeholders.  A key outcome 
of the change in legal status and rebranding of the 
organisation was the ability to raise funding in the 
international finance open market.  
THE FIRST STRATEGIC PLAN

For the first time in its short period of existence, 
FINCORP commissioned a five Year Business Plan 
that defined a vision; mission; and statement of 
purpose for the organisation. The strategic plan 
defined clear objectives and annual operational targets 
to guide implementation. Six critical conclusions on 
the financial viability of FINCORP were identified in 
the Business Plan as follows:
- FINCORP showed  strong potential for maintain-

ing its profitability into the future;
- The default rate was seen as one of the most 

important variables that needed to be managed 
effectively;

- Optimum market penetration and utilisation 
of the new infrastructure was expected to be 
achieved in financial years leading up to 2010 
with initial return on equity of 5.6%.  Financial 
analysis also indicated that financial sufficiency 
had been attained. 

- The sugar cane loan portfolio remained the 
main cornerstone for the sustainability of the 
organisation and was to grow, both in scale and 
scope, but diversification would also be critical.  

History will show that the organisation soon 
thereafter experienced phenomenal organic growth, 
far exceeding expectations.  The loan portfolio grew 
by over 100% in one year, followed by average annual 
growth of 20% and Staff numbers also increased by 
over 150%.  Profitability escalated to unprecedented 
and enviable levels and this was a clear manifestation 
of a growing and maturing organisation, reaping the 
fruits of being innovative, dynamic and versatile. One 
major development was the introduction of salary 
based lending as a semi-independent department 
known as “Micro Services Department”. The rest is 
history as the institution and its brand was elevated to 
be a force to be reckoned with in the financial services 
sector in Swaziland. 

THE BIRTH OF A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The organic growth of FINCORP was taken to another 
level in January 2010 by the formation of a subsidiary   14

HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE Tracing the Origin, Rapid Transformation  and  
Future Strategic Direction  of the Organisation
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company known as First Finance Company (FIRST). 
The main goal of the company is to separate micro-
lending from entrepreneurial-lending  in order to allow 
FINCORP adhere to the  mandate of entrepreneurial 
and development finance lending whilst the subsidiary 
will pursue complimentary commercial activities. This 
subsidiary seeks to present clients with an ethical, 
transparent and prudent lender that will guard against 
the over-indebtedness of borrowers. 

The subsidiary offers a wide range of microloans pro- 
ducts which include general purpose loans, short 
term loans, emergency loans, education loans, 
debt consolidation and invoice discounting. FIRST 
differentiates itself from the rest of the micro-
lenders in Swaziland by exercising due care not to 
over commit borrowers and, in addition, offer debt 
counselling and onsite personal financial planning to  
its loan beneficiaries.  

INTERNATIONAL RECOGNITION

FINCORP’s performance has been acknowledged 
nationally and internationally by a number of 
professional bodies.  In 2002, the World Association 
of Small and Medium Enterprises (WASME) awarded 
the organisation a prize of ‘Operational Excellence’. In 
2004 , FINCORP was honoured with the Euro Market 
Research Centre Award of Excellence and again in 
2005, the Euro Market Research Centre honoured 
the organisation for its ‘Outstanding Contribution 
to Enterprise  Development’. In 2009, FINCORP was 
ranked by Association of African DFIs (AADFI) as the 

“Top Fifth Development Finance Institution” in Africa. 
In 2011, the same Association gave FINCORP an “A” 
Credit Rating. 

FINCORP continues to be guided by its highest 
aspiration, which is, “To be recognised and acknowledged 
by our stakeholders nationally and internationally 
as the foremost development finance institution”.  
The organisation also continues to be guided by its 
statement of purpose, which is, “To economically 
empower Swazi Citizens through the provision of 
accessible and sustainable financial services.”

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF  THE PAST FIVE 
YEARS
The outgoing five year strategic plan had five (5) Core 
Business Strategies;  seven (7) Enabling Strategies; 
Thirty Two (32) Programmes and; 150 projects. 
Meaningful and satisfactory progress was achieved in 
the implementation of all strategies. Most importantly, 
the organisation reached its targeted porfolio growth 
of up to E500 Million by 2012. However, resource 
mobilisation has remained to be the one biggest 
challenge faced by FINCORP.   

DEFINING THE NEXT FIVE YEARS

The core lending areas remain the foundation of 
the organisation, with their respective performance 
targets, and the five strategic initiatives represent the 
key enabling strategies for the organisation. These 
strategic initiatives are as follows:

a) Strengthen Risk Management, Credit Appraisal 
and Portfolio Monitoring Mechanisms.

b) Improve Funding Stream and Strengthen Treasury 
Function.

c) Strengthen Human Resource Management Capacity.
d) Strategic Communication, Execution and Imple-

mentation.
e) Development of Products/ Markets.
In addition to addressing the findings of the 
institutional performance review and the confirmation 
of FINCORP’s role and positioning, these strategic 
initiatives have a direct link to the fulfilment of 
FINCORP’s revised mission.

Each of the strategic initiatives comprises of a limited 
number of objectives, the achievement of which is 
dependent on the successful execution of the defined 
activities. These all have start and finish dates; financial 
and non-financial outcomes. 

CONCLUSION 

As an organisation with a legacy of  dynamism and 
willingness to adapt to the global economic and 
technological changes, FINCORP will continue to 
explore ways and means of making a meaningful  
impact upon the Financial Services Sector in Swaziland. 
In the medium to long term, the organisation aims at 
transforming itself into a broad based development 
finance institution offering a wide range of financial 
services under one roof.  Building upon the successes and 
lessons learnt to date, nothing can stop FINCORP from 
evolving into a world class financial services provider.  
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OPERATIONS   REVIEW -  Business Lending

INTRODUCTION

The General Business Department experienced 

exponential growth and approved loans 

amounting to E174 Million during the year 

under review. The total departmental loan portfolio 

stood at E287 Million as at 31 March 2012. This 

constitutes about half of the total portfolio of the 

organisation, which was targeted to be achieved in 

terms of  the five year strategic plan ending March 2012 

and confirms the significant headway made towards 

creating entrepreneurial opportunities for Swazi 

citizens through access to credit. 

OVERVIEW OF THE DEPARTMENT

The Business Department has a staff compliment of 

twelve (12) officers which constitutes about 35% of the 

total staff complement of the organisation. 

The Business Department is categorised into three 

subdivisions in recognition of the need to take into 

account special appraisal and monitoring requirements  

for specific sectors and also allow for specialisation 

within the different categories of loans requested by 

clients. These sectors are demarcated by loan size  

and have specific teams responsible for the different 

portfolios. The different categories are as follows:-

All the above segments are supervised and led by 

Senior Credit Officers who each oversee a team of 

Credit Officers. The most important thing being that 

for each existing and new loan account, there is Credit 

Relationship Officer attached to it. 

UMTFOMBO LOANS – MICRO 

LOANS

FINCORP has over the years been 

largely responsive to the exponential 

demand from small and medium 

entrepreneurs, who are predominantly 

more  into formal businesses such as 

Trucking, Public Transport, Butchery, 

Grocery, Food Production and Order 

Finance. It became evident that there 

was a gap in the market with respect to 

the funding of Micro-Enterprises which 

are predominantly informal in nature. 

No formal financial institution was  

serving the needs of these Micro Enterprises commonly 

referred to as ‘hawkers’. They are involved in the sale of  

fruits and vegetables, handicrafts, second-hand clothing  

and food. The formal Financial Sector viewed this 

market as being high risk and also did not possess any 

collateral to mitigate this risk. Following an equity 

Micro Loans Ranging between E500 to E10000
SME Loans Ranging from E10 001 to E200 000
Capital and Working Capital Loans Ranging from E201 000 to E1 Million
Capital and Working Capital Loans Above E1 Million
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injection of E50 Million from the major Shareholder, 

FINCORP launched the Micro-Loan product for Micro-

Enterprises and it has proved to be the right tonic for 

growth. This product comes with a high degree of 

turnover as some clients have managed to borrow 

and fully repay up to ten (10) loans within a period 

of twenty four (24) months, since the product was 

launched. This product has created opportunities 

for the empowerment of the Swazi population at the 

grass roots level thus ensuring effective alleviation 

of poverty in the rural areas.  

The loan range for this sector is between E500  

and E10 000 and is repayable within six months. 

This product has come as a huge relief to Micro 

Enterprises, which previously relied on shylocks 

for funding, and they charge very high interest 

rates. This sector has approved over 1000 loans in 

excess of E10 Million to date. Most clients are located in 

the Manzini and Mbabane corridor and plans are afoot 

to expand to other towns such as Siteki, Nhlangano and 

Pigg’s Peak. 

LOANS UNDER E1 MILLION

There are three (3) main sub-categories of loans below 

E1 Million and they stand as follows:-

i) SME Loans from E10 001 – E100 000

ii) SME Loans from E101 000 – E200 000

iii) SME Loans from E201 000 – E1 000 000

The SME loans ranging between E10 000 to E100 000 

are offered at special reduced interest rates. This is 

done in an effort to try and make funds more accessible 

to SME’s and further increase the chances of business 

success in order to contribute to the  strengthening of 

the ailing Swazi economy.  Since the introduction of 

this product the portfolio has grown to E10.2 million. 

 

Like all other loan applications received by the 

organisation, SME loans are screened and appraised 

by Credit Officers, who initially meet with a potential 

client at our offices and discuss prospects for business 

success based on economic and financial viability, plus 

the capacity of the promoter to manage the proposed 

business. This is then followed by an onsite visit to 

physically inspect the location of the business. 

 IMPACT

The categorisation of loans within the Department 

has had a positive impact as far as the loan processing 

cycle and tracking is concerned. All approved loans 

are expected to be disbursed within one (1) month 

from date of initial receipt of application. This has 

improved both efficiency and effectiveness in terms 

of handling clients and we have seen a good client 

retention rate. It has also helped impact positively 

on the monitoring of clients because our officers are 

now able to specialise in specific sectors and have 

thus amassed a lot of expertise with respect to their 

respective segments. 

CONCLUSION

It remains the Department’s foremost objective to 

reach out to a high number of Swazi entrepreneurs who 

wish to venture into various businesses countrywide. 

The Business Department is committed to assisting 

every Swazi from grassroots to formal SMEs, through 

rendering quality service to our customers.
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OPERATIONS   REVIEW -  Agribusiness Lending

INTRODUCTION

Agribusiness is the centre and engine of most 
emerging economies. Agricultural production 
is the key source of raw materials. In terms 

of Gobal Economic Output, global employment, land 
use and water usage in agribusiness accounts for 50%, 
60% and 70% respectively. Agribusiness has been in 
existence from the foundation of society and remains 
the key driver of socioeconomic development in many 
emerging economies.

FINCORP is one of the leading financial institutions 
providing financial services for agricultural business 
activities. Agriculture has deep cultural roots among 
Swazi citizens and has over time evolved to be the 
backbone of the country’s economic growth and major  

foreign exchange earner. The economy continues to 
be largely hinged on agriculture. 

Apparently, the country is blessed with the prevalence 
of multiple climatic conditions in one season in the 
different regions, which makes it possible to produce 
diverse agricultural products throughout the year. 
Conventional financial institutions are frequently not 
driven to finance rural farmers due to risks associated 
with the sector.  FINCORP has gone out of its way to 
design financing avenues that seek to mitigate risk in 
this sector. Moreover, the Corporation was founded 
on the principles of increasing access to financial 
services to marginalised sections of the society.

FINCORP has financed a host of agricultural projects 
across the entire value chain. As at the end of the 
financial year, 35% of the total portfolio represented 
agribusiness loans in various sectors.   

AGRIBUSINESS BUSINESS 

Historically, the institution had a high exposure to sugar 
cane production which, at some point, represented 
more than seventy per cent (70%) of the total loan 
portfolio. This situation was largely driven by the decent 
return on investment in this sector.  From 2005 to 2010, 
the sugar cane industry experienced serious price 
volatility challenges coupled with farm inputs  cost 
escalations which prompted the organisation to look 
for other equally sustainable and high value agricultural 
production activities. In recent years, the sugar price 
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has been on the rise and is expected to maintain this 
positive trajectory in the short to medium term future.  
In order for the organisation to remain profitable in the 
agriculture sector, diversification to other agricultural 
products has been made a priority.  It is against this 
background that FINCORP has made concerted 
efforts to secure strategic partners with several major 
marketing agencies.

SUGAR CANE PRODUCTION  FINANCING MODEL

FINCORP is one of the main sugar cane production 
financing institutions in Swaziland assisting small 
holder farmers in non title deed land commonly 
referred to as Swazi Nation Land (SNL). As at 31 
March 2012, the balance of loans extended to sugar 
cane farmers stood at E81.8 Million. Credit risk on 
these loans is mitigated by obtaining a cession over 
payment proceeds with all the sugar mills. As a 
direct consequence, FINCORP has sugar cane clients 
throughout the country.   

The sugar industry has proved to be central to 
the economy of Swaziland, accounting for 51% of 
agricultural output, 35% of agricultural wage and about 
24% of National GDP. With Swaziland facing high levels 
of poverty and unemployment, the sector can make a 
meaningful contribution to fighting these problems. 
Sugar cane farming presents a good opportunity 
for farmers to secure self employment, raise family 
incomes and escape the scourge of poverty.
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OPERATIONS   REVIEW -  Agribusiness Lending (continued)

HAULAGE SERVICES 

FINCORP has relentlessly maintained its focus 
on supporting Small and Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs) in Swaziland in all sectors of the economy. 
These past years have seen a resurgence of the 
haulage industry in the country where FINCORP 
has been one of the major financiers for truck 
operators. Historically, this kind of business was 
a preserve of foreign contractors, with very little 
benefit for local SME’s. The trucking and haulage 
portfolio stood at E64 million as at 31 March 2012.  
The Corporation has financed truck owners who haul 
sugarcane for farmers’ associations, which is good 
example of value chain financing.

The haulage industry will continue to grow in the 
short to medium when you take into consideration the 

sugarcane production initiative at LUSIP and the 
expansion of the KDDP areas. Key challenges 
faced by the truck owners include increased 
recurrent costs. Notwithstanding the above 
challenges, the haulage industry remains 
profitable. 

LIVESTOCK PRODUCTION

FINCORP has consistently maintained its 
focus on SMEs in every sector of the economy. 
The Corporation has financed different types 
of livestock farming activities which include 

beef, dairy, layers, broiler and piggery production. 
Total loans advanced under livestock production as at 
31 March 2012 stood at E10.3 million, representing 
5.5% of the agriculture portfolio. Although all these 
types of livestock activities have reliable markets in 
the country, a number of challenges exist.

The main challenge this industry faces is the high 
feed cost. All financed livestock farming activities 
are conducted under zero grazing, which means 
animals are fed animal feed which is procured from 
warehouses which manufacture and supply animal 
feed. The cost of animal feed has escalated because 
one of the major animal feed components, yellow 
maize, is a scarce commodity in the Republic of South 
Africa. Since demand levels for yellow maize are very 
high in an environment of low supply, the price per 
tonne is relatively expensive when compared to other 

inputs. As a result, the net revenue per kilogram of  
the product is marginal. Consequently, any slight 
increase in the production costs renders livestock 
projects unattractive. 

CONCLUSION

FINCORP will continue to finance agricultural 
production and support clients in order to ensure that 
their business ventures remain viable. From a strategic 
perspective, the Corporation wants to help identify 
and develop new products and markets for farmers. 
A critical aspect to promoting Agribusiness is the 
identification of opportunities for agri-processing and 
value addition. The organisation will constantly seek 
new and innovative ways of financing agriculture as it 
is the cornerstone of the domestic economy.
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OPERATIONS   REVIEW -  Legal Affairs Department

INTRODUCTION

The fully-fledged Legal Department was 
established in 2006 in an effort to strengthen 
the enforcement of loan contracts with 

counterparties in particular loan beneficiaries and is 
presently manned by an experienced Legal Practitioner, 
who is an Admitted Attorney both in the Republic of 
South Africa and in Swaziland. 

INFORMATION

The Legal Department is tasked with safe guarding all 
legal related issues of the organisation including regular 
liaisons with external attorneys. 

The organisation, as a financial institution, enters 
into numerous agreements and memorandum of 
agreements with various counterparties. Another key 
role of the Legal Department is to provide management 
with legal support on key issues impacting on the 
successful operation of the business. The Department 
keeps management abreast with the latest developments 
in the regulatory environment and ensures all policies 
and procedures are legally compliant.

Skills development is of paramount importance 
as FINCORP operates in a dynamic environment 

which requires new and improved working methods, 
hence staff in the Legal Department undergoes 
periodic training on current standards, to draft, review 
and negotiate agreements in order to safeguard the 
interests of the organisation. 
   
LEGAL RECOVERY

The organisation’s structure includes Credit Officers 
who are mainly at the forefront of lending operations, 
and closely interact with clients accounts on a day-to-
day basis. In the event of default and upon exhausting 
all possible cohesive efforts to enforce compliance with 
loan obligations, the clients are then referred to the  
Legal Department for commencement of the litigation. 

Once the letter of demand is issued, a client is given 
reasonable time lines within which to rectify the arrear 
position. It is after this endeavour has failed to yield 
positive results that a client account is then referred for 
legal action with our external attorneys. 

COLLATERAL

In line with financial institution’s lending policy, 
some loan facilities require security to mitigate 
credit risk. The Legal Department is responsible for 
facilitating the registration and cancellation of  bonds 
on movable and immovable assets by liaising with 
external conveyancers. On a periodic basis, reviews are 
undertaken to ascertain that all assets held as security 
are adequately insured and that they remain insured at 
all times.

CONCLUSION

Taking legal action against our clients is used as the last 
resort after having done everything humanly possible 
to recover and also help resuscitate ailing businesses. 
We must however, put it on record that where we 
have instituted legal proceedings, we are guaranteed 
recovery and we commend our external attorneys for 
their commitment and support.
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OPERATIONS   REVIEW -  Information Technology

INTRODUCTION

The role of the Information Technology 
Department (IT) at FINCORP is to 
continuously make sure that information 

technology systems are available, provide solutions 
and ensure that the organisation is kept abreast with 
global technology changes. The Department also deals 
with the ongoing challenge of controlling information 
technology sprawl while protecting technology 
assets, systems, networks, databases and applications 

from internal and external 
threats, as well as misuse. 

The IT Department was esta- 
blished in the year 2002 when it 
became apparent that the then 
existing off-the-shelf loan port- 
folio and accounting software 
would no longer meet the 
increasing and ever changing 
requirements of the growing 
lending business operation and 
the realisation that information 
technology was vital and inte-
gral for the success of the 
organisation. 

At present, the organisation has two resource persons 
providing support to more than 50 users, including 
those working at the subsidiary, First Finance Company. 
The limited number of departmental staff requires the 
adoption of cutting edge methodologies to accomplish 
tasks that allow end users to have all the information 
they require to complete their jobs at their fingertips. 
It is up to the IT Department to make this happen in 
an environment of constantly increasing technological 
complexity and shrinking budgets. 

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM (MIS)

In 2010 FINCORP successfully rolled out its core state 
of the art Management Information System (MIS) 
known as ‘Banker’s Realm’ replacing one that was in use 
since 2002. This is a fully-fledged integrated multi user 
banking software sourced from a reputable company 
known as Craft Silicon based in Kenya. The software 
is widely used in East and Central Africa as well as 
Asia by leading banks and microfinance institutions 
with vast branch networks. Banker’s Realm is a 
scalable modular information system that allows the 
Corporation to manage Loans and Advances, External 
Debt (loans to the Corporation), Fixed Assets, General 
Ledger and Customer Relationship Management. 

User Access Control is a core feature of the system 
that allows management to allocate selective access to 
the various available modules. A host of daily, weekly 
and monthly reports are available to all users. This 
allows quick decision making and interventions to 
be undertaken especially by the Credit, Finance and 
Operations Departments. Financial and other data 
required for this 2011/2012 financial year audit has 
been generated from this system.
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  GOVERNANCE

Information Technology Governance recognises 
that information and information technology is at 
the heart of the modern economy - and also at the 
heart of the modern organisation. FINCORP, as an 
organisation, recognises and values the various IT 

management frameworks such as CobiT, ITIL, ISO 
Standards and the King III Code in managing the IT 
environment. The Board and Management ensure 
that IT is aligned with business objectives and delivers 
value, that its resources are properly allocated and its 
risks mitigated. The introduction of the Swaziland 
Standards Authority in the country will come with 
certain compliance requirements for industry in 
general and IT compliance standards will also be 
introduced. Careful implementation of the various IT 
management frameworks ensures that organisations 
remain compliant.  

THE FUTURE

FINCORP has crafted its future road map in the form 
of a new strategic plan for the five year period ending 
March 2017. The IT Department will play a critical 
role in the implementation of this plan. The roll out of 
branches, first in Manzini, will allow the Department 
to manage a Wide Area Network (WAN). This will 
also allow us to explore the implementation of the 
latest technology in computing and storage known as 
‘The Cloud’.

The distance between branches also comes with 
the need for a solution that will simplify document 
management and sharing among the branches. The 
implementation of a Document Management System 

is in the pipeline and, again, the Department will be at 
the forefront of this initiative. 

As the organisation introduces new Business Units and, 
designs and rolls out new products to the market, the 
IT Department has to ensure that their design can be 
completely and fully implemented within the existing 
systems. 

Another area of interest going into the future is the use 
of mobile devices especially the mobile phone to deliver 
our products and services to our clients. It has been 
shown in other parts of the world that the mobile phone 
is fast becoming the device of choice for delivering fast, 
efficient and most importantly affordable services to all 
clients including those in remote areas.

CONCLUSION

The Information Technology Department interacts 
with and provides services mostly to internal 
customers deployed in all the Departments of the 
organisation. Furthermore, the ability to meet client 
information requirements is also underpinned by the 
provision of state of the art information technology 
systems. Improved ways of enhancing service delivery 
and performance will continue to be researched and 
explored. 

FINCORP has crafted its future 

road map in the form of a new 

strategic plan for the five year 

period ending March 2017. The IT 

Department will play a critical role 

in the implementation of this plan. 

The roll out of branches, first in 

Manzini, will allow the Department 

to manage a Wide Area Network 

(WAN). This will also allow us to 

explore the implementation of the 

latest technology in computing  

and storage known as ‘The Cloud’.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW -  Success Stories 

A SUCCESSFUL BLOCK-MAKING BUSINESS
LOCATION :  MATSAPHA, SWAZILAND

INTRODUCTION

Lumko Investments (Pty) is a family business 
located in Matsapha. It is managed on a 
fulltime basis by Mr. Ncamiso Dlamini and 

Mrs. Phindile Dlamini who hold equal shares in the 
business. The couple had a dream to establish their 
own enterprise, having been involved in a family 
business which is mainly involved in the supply of river 
sand, crush stone and plaster sand within the Manzini 
and Mbabane corridor. While interacting with clients 
who had come to purchase river and plaster sand, 
the couple identified that a strong demand exists for 

building blocks and pavers hence the beginning of 
their interest to open their own business. 

INFORMATION

The Company Directors then approached FINCORP in 
the year 2010 for a Lease Facility to acquire an Electronic 
Block Making Machinery for the block making business, 
which was duly granted. From the time the business 
acquired the said machinery, they were overwhelmed 
by demand for their products as individual clients and 
construction companies were impressed with the quality 
and strength of their produce. 

The Directors are committed and dedicate their lives 
full-time to the project, something that has seen the 
business growing to the extent that they managed to 
acquire other relevant equipment used in the business 
from the business proceeds. These include a fork lift 
and a truck used to transport sand to the production 
site and also make deliveries of the final products to 
their clients. The company offers high quality blocks 
that have attracted a number of clients ranging from 
individuals and construction companies operating 
between the two cities.  The client has also managed 
to develop their home where they reside with their 
children. Therefore, their lives have improved 
tremendously. 

FUTURE PLANS

The Directors have now identified a further 
opportunity within the value chain and intend to 
venture into property development by acquiring and 
developing vacant property with the intention to sell 
to the general public. Their target group is the middle 
income group where most of the Swaziland working 
class generally belongs. They have already identified 
and acquired two properties for the said project with 
the assistance of FINCORP.  

CONCLUSION

The Directors are grateful for the financial and 
technical support provided by FINCORP which 
enabled their dreams to become a reality. FINCORP, 
on the other hand, is proud to have played a big 
role in establishing a new Swazi Enterprise, and in 
particular, the good repayment record exhibited over 
the years. In fact, they managed to repay their first 
loan three years earlier than scheduled. The company 
has managed to create job opportunities for 12 Swazis 
who are employed on a full time basis. With the new 
construction project we can now guarantee additional 
job opportunities hence positively impacting in the job 
creation initiative by the Swaziland Government. 

24
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A SUCCESSFUL DAIRY FARMING BUSINESS
 LOCATION: NSOKO, SWAZILAND 

INTRODUCTION

Mr. Paul Makhanya is a successful dairy 
farmer operating at Nsoko in the 
Lubombo Region. He was given 12ha 

on Swazi Nation Land by local authorities, this forms 
part of his grazing field, which is currently not being 
irrigated until the installation of a borehole. Mr. 
Makhanya started to have a dream of a dairy business 
in 2005. To put that dream into reality he approached 
FINCORP and requested for finance to purchase five 
(5) dairy cows. Over the years, the cows have multiplied 

hence the herd size increased to fourteen (14) 
animals. 

INFORMATION

Initially, Mr. Makhanya serviced his clients well 
and the customer base increased, resulting in the 
demand of his product escalating extensively. 
The increase in demand for his products forced 
him to increase the volume of milk production 
to maintain his market share. Early in 2012, 
to ensure that he had money to purchase 
his additional cattle, he made a request for a 
second loan from FINCORP. The funds were 

to purchase five (5) dairy cows to add to the existing 
fourteen herd of cattle. Consequently, the number of 
cattle has increased to a total of nineteen (19) cattle. 

The main market for his products is Nsoko Spar, where 
Mr. Makhanya is employed. Nsoko Spar has reserved 
a shelf for Mr. Makhanya’s products; as a result you 
find the products on the supermarkets’ shelves. The 
farmer’s products are fresh milk and sour milk which 
are packaged in clearly labelled bottles. The products 
are called “Fresh Milk Nsongo Dairy Project” and “Emasi 
Asekhaya Nsongo Dairy Project”.  Some of the milk  
is supplied to customers in Simunye, by Mr. Makhanya’s 
employer when making weekly deliveries. 

Since receiving the first loan, the farmer has made the 
following improvements, fenced the area,  renovated 
the milking parlour, managed 12 ha of natural grazing 
to form pastures and dug a borehole, all at a cost 
slightly above E20,000.00. 

CONCLUSION

The client has exhibited a high level of commit-ment 
and dedication to the business, and combined with his 
passion for dairy farming, has ensured he succeeds in 
his endeavour. He is a good example for other SMEs 
through the good conduct of his loan accounts. This 
has further placed him in the enviable position of being 
able to request more assistance from FINCORP in the 
event of an emergency.

The client has exhibited a high 
level of commitment and dedication 
to the business, and combined 
with his passion for dairy farming, 
has ensured he succeeds in his 
endeavour. He is a good example 
for other SMEs through the good 
conduct of his loan accounts.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - FINCORP Subsidiary Company – FIRST FINANCE  

THE BIRTH OF THE SUBSIDIARY

FIRST FINANCE is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
FINCORP,  governed by a distinguished Board 
made up of selected Board Members of the 

Board of FINCORP.  Meanwhile the Board is chaired 
by an independent Chairman, Mr. Farlie Mabuza, 
who is a qualified Chartered Account and commands 
extensive experience in managing investments, whilst 
Mr. Dumisani Msibi serves as the General Manager. 

ACHIEVEMENTS TO DATE
This financial year saw a seamless consolidation of the 
newly formed subsidiary company, FIRST FINANCE, 

as it entered its second year. Unprecedented  
portfolio growth to E217 Million depicting 
a considerable growth of 141%, compared to 
portfolio size at its launch. The clientele shot up to  
7,238 borrowers. FIRST, has since inception, 
achieved high profitability rates which contribute 
positively to the entire group. Plans are already 
underway to establish another branch at the next 
biggest city, Manzini, in order to efficiently and 
effectively service the high influx of new clients.

One other significant achievement during the 
year was the introduction of “Invoice Discounting 

Product”. Invoice Discounting, essentially, is the sale of 
the invoices of a particular debtor to a financier, in this 
case FIRST FINANCE, who then pays out cash upfront 
and instantaneously. The business then uses these funds 
inter alia to purchase more raw materials or stock, 
settling creditors earlier in order to obtain substantial 
settlement discounts, which eventually partly mitigates 
the costs associated with invoice discounting. 

Invoice Discounting gives you the flexibility to 
immediately access finance when it is required.  After all,  
“Cash is King” for small businesses.  Small businesses 
are predominantly victims of delayed payments by 
large companies and sometimes Governments for 

periods ranging from 30 -180 days.  Most importantly 
the owing companies or debtors of the entrepreneur 
are expected to cede payments to FIRST FINANCE 
once discounted.

FUTURE DIRECTION 

FIRST FINANCE plans to reach out to a diverse 
range of clients, including those that are traditionally 
excluded by the Commercial Financial Services Sector. 
FIRST will  endeavour to develop and mobilise human 
and financial resources in order to achieve good value 
for the shareholders, customers, and human capital. 
The medium term ultimate goal is to later elevate 
FIRST to a second tier banking institution offering low 
cost banking services.
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OPERATIONS   REVIEW - Finance & Administration Department

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

As at the end of the financial year ended 31 March 
2012, the staff compliment stood at fifty two 
(52). Out of the full compliment, fifteen (15)  

are seconded to the subsidiary, First Finance Company.  
This subsidiary company started operations in January 
2010. The organisation’s structure is as shown  on the 
opposite page. 

STAFF TRAINING

At FINCORP we value our staff members since our 
organisation is people driven as we are in the service 
industry.

Consequently, we have made conscious decision to 
invest in human capital development as much as we 
possibly can. During the year under review we released 
one staff member on full time study leave to pursue a 
Masters in Microfinance & Banking in Moi University 
Kenya School of Monetary Studies.  The Officer,  
Mr. Bonginkosi Phakathi, is expected back at  
FINCORP in a year’s time from date of release.  

Mr. Phakathi is going to be the fifth Masters Degree 
Graduate since inception to be released by FINCORP 
on full-time study leave.  Graduates are then bonded to 
the organisation for a specific period of time and this is 
what we call investing for the future in human capital.

 

PART TIME STUDY BY EMPLOYEESS

Some employees have fully apply the opportunity to 
undertake profssional post-graduate studies, in a part time 
basis. Mr Sipho Mkhwamubi and Ms. Temangcamane 
Maseko both successfully completed the Master of 
Science in Leadership and Change Management.

Meanwhile the organisation continues to take advantage 
of its affiliation to a number of development finance 
international networks which offer capacity building 
and secondment opportunities. Most of our Credit 
Officers have attended the High Level Credit & 
Investment Appraisal intensive training course offered 
by SADC Development Finance Resource Centre 

in conjunction with the Queens Town University – 
Canada.  Selected senior officers have also attended  
the Harvard University (USA) Programme on Financial 
Institutions for Private Enterprise Development 
(FIPED). All this is carried out in order to ensure staff 
members are better prepared to meet the diverse and  

sometimes very complex service demands from our 
customers.  On the other hand we also encourage staff 
members to upgrade themselves academically on a part- 
time basis through correspondence and also provide 
the necessary support. We offer them study loans 
which they repay until they complete the course after 
which we refund them in full provided they successfully  
complete the training and graduate. Similarly they  
are then bonded to the institution for a specified  period 
of time. We are grateful for the fact that most of the people 
that we invested in, are still serving the organisation today. 
Below is a table showing training workshops attended by 
the Corporation’s Staff during the financial period:

Sipho Mkhwamubi
Attained MSc in Leadership  & Change 

Management  (Leeds Business School, UK)
Bonginkhosi Phakathi

Attained a Masters Degree in Microfinance 
& Banking  (Moi University, Kenya)

Temangcamane Maseko
Attained MSc in Leadership  & Change 

Management  (Leeds Business School, UK) 
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NAME POSITION COURSE/CONFERENCE/TRAINING COUNTRY

Mlungisi Hadebe Manager Agribusiness 4th African Rural and Agricultural Credit Association (AFRACA) Forum Mombasa – Kenya
Temangcamane Maseko Senior HR Officer 2nd Conference for Training & HR Professional in African Dev. Banks & Finance 

Institutions – AADFI
Angola

Busie Simelane Senior Credit Officer - Business Advanced Class on Mastering SME Credit Appraisal & Lending Decisions Nairobi – Kenya
Brian Dlamini Senior  Credit Officer Agribusiness Advanced Class on Mastering SME Credit Appraisal & Lending Decisions Nairobi – Kenya
Mr M. Dlamini Board Corporate Governance RSA
Mr Justice Simelane Manager Finance & Administration Subordinated Lending, Equity, Quasi Equity Investments Zambia
Velibanti Khumalo Financial Accountant International Financial Reporting Standards RSA

Portia Khumalo Finance Officer Risk Management Programme RSA

Thokozani Mavimbela First Finance Risk Management Programme RSA

Temangcamane Maseko Senior HR Officer Measuring HR Effectiveness Windhoek

Siko Ntshalintshali Manager Business Lending 2011 Global Development Finance Conference Dubai – U.A.E.

Mr Mlungisi Hadebe Manager Agribusiness ACTESA’s 5th Stakeholders Forum and COMRAP Wrap Meeting Lilongwe – Malawi

Velibanti Khumalo Financial Accountant Management of Banks & Financial Institutes – Galilee Israel

Derrick Mavuso Credit Officer – Business Project Management, Monitoring and Evaluation Training Botswana

Zenzele Dlamini Senior  Credit Officer - Agribusiness Project Management, Monitoring and Evaluation Training Botswana

Thulani Ngcamphalala Credit Officer – Business Managing Problem Loans Swaziland

Meshack Shabangu Senior  Credit Officer - Agribusiness Project Management, Monitoring and Evaluation Training Botswana

Fakazi Nxumalo Credit Officer – Business Managing Problem Loans Swaziland 

Mxolisi Ngwenya Credit Officer – Business Managing Problem Loans Swaziland

Brian Dlamini Senior Credit Officer - Agribusiness Managing Problem Loans Swaziland



�����������������������������������������

OPERATIONS   REVIEW - Finance & Administration Department (continued)

The organisation also had staff members pursuing 
various postgraduate programmes. 

Mr. Bonginkhosi Phakathi, a Senior Credit Officer at  
the subsidiary First Finance Company, enrolled for  a 
Masters Degree in Banking and Finance Majoring in 
Microfinance at the Kenya School of Monetary Studies 
– Moi Business School for one year and was released on 
a full-time,  paid study leave. Mr. Phakathi is expected to 
finish his studies and return to work in the third quarter 
of next financial year.

During the year, two more staff members enrolled for 
a Master of Science (MSc) in Leadership & Change 
Management with Leeds Metropolitan University 
– United Kingdom on a part time basis. These are 
Temangcamane Maseko, Senior Human Resource 
Officer and Sipho Mkhwamubi who is Manager 
Business Lending. They are both expected to complete 
their  studies at the beginning of the next financial year. 
Meanwhile three staff members are currently pursuing 
their ACCA Chartered Accountancy qualification. 

They are currently at different levels of the programme. 
These are Mr. Thokozani Mavimbela, Mr. Zwakele 
Matse and Ms. Nothemba Hlandze.

Other than the above mentioned training under SADC-
DFRC and AADFI, the company fulfils training needs 
through internally financed training. Training that was 
undertaken during the year is as follows:

NAME POSITION COURSE/CONFERENCE/TRAINING COUNTRY

Busi Simelane Senior  Credit Officer - Business Women in Leadership Conference – REDI Swaziland 
Sipho Mkhwamubi Senior  Credit Officer  -Agribusiness Weather Index Regional Conference – ACTESA Zimbabwe
Queeneth Tshabalala Executive Administration Officer Excel Workshop for Remuneration Practitioners RSA
Thokozani Mavimbela First Finance IFRS 2011 Update RSA
Nothemba Hlanze Finance Officer Management of Banks & Financial Institutes – Galilee Israel
Bongani Maphalala Credit Officer – First Finance MS Excel – Intermediate Stage Swaziland
Percy Gule Credit Officer – First Finance MS Excel – Intermediate Stage Swaziland
Clive Mamba Credit Officer – First Finance Debt Counselling RSA
Velibanti Khumalo Financial Accountant International Financial Reporting Standards RSA
Fakazi Nxumalo Credit Officer -Business Sustainable Microenterprise and Development Program Tanzania
Bongile Zwane Finance Officer Bookkeeping and Basic Accountancy for Secretaries Windhoek
Mlungisi Hadebe Manager Agribusiness ACTESA’s 5th Stakeholders Forum and COMRAP Wrap Meeting Lilongwe – Malawi

Thulani Ngcamphalala Credit Officer - Business Loan Appraisal, Monitoring & Evaluation Israel
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ORGANISATIONAL TEAM BUILDING EXERCISE

In response to the growing number of employees, the 
organisation hosted a team building exercise facilitated 

by corporate team building professionals; namely Swazi 
Trails. The most significant output of the team building 
exercise has been vastly improved organisational 
communication and inter personal relations amongst 

employees. We can confidently say employees now 
understand and know each other better than they did 
before the team retreat.

FINCORP Staff at a Team Building Exercise
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OPERATIONS   REVIEW - Finance & Administration Department (continued)

MARKETING

During the year the organisation embarked on a 
mass communication drive internally and externally 
through selected media channels in an effort to ensure 
that the target clientele is more aware of our market  
positioning, product offering and internal processes. 
We have also routinely shared selected success stories 
of entrepreneurs who benefited from FINCORP in an 
effort to motivate others.  Feedback received from the 
general public suggests that people are currently more 
aware of the services offered by the organisation and 
now approach our offices with realistic and moderated 
expectations. The newly established Marketing Unit 
has achieved satisfactory results. 

FINCORP’S  CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

FINCORP subscribes to the ethical principles of 
the triple bottom line; meaning making a concerted 
effort to balance profits, people and the environment. 
We strongly believe that if we invest in people and 
the environment, we are investing in the future and 
sustained success of the company. FINCORP has 
made a conscious decision to be actively involved in 
countrywide activities that promote entrepreneurship 
and enterprise development.

As such we have been involved in several Corporate 
Social Investment initiatives as listed below during the 
year under review:

 Small Holder Sugarcane Growers 
 Over the years we have partnered with the Swaziland 
Sugar Association and contributed towards the sugar 

cane growers farmers competition. Our contribution 
has been through sponsorship of prizes for smallholder 
farmers. This is a competition where winners are rated by 
performance on yields which is measured by tones cane 
per hector (TCH) and by sucrose percentage content. 
This a good initiative that was established to encourage 
and empower small holder sugar cane farmers  to 
achieve high yields and therefore increase the quality of 
sugar and ultimately their incomes. 

Junior Achievement
One activity that is squarely in line with our core 
business is the Junior Achievement - Swaziland, 
wherein we made a contribution of E40, 000.00 
during the year under review. Junior Achievement 
Swaziland aims at empowering school going children 
with business and entrepreneurial skills. Furthermore, 
the programme seeks to expose the students to the 
corporate environment  at school age. We are pleased 
to note that the Swaziland representative namely Lusoti 
High School conquered the entire African continent 
by being overall winners of the Continental Junior 
Achievement Business Competition.

UNISWA Foundation
On an annual basis over the last four years we have 
sponsored the UNISWA Foundation with an annual 
amount of E50, 000.00. UNISWA Foundation is 
the resource mobilisation  arm for the University of 
Swaziland. The aims and objectives of the foundation 
are to adequately support  the different faculties within 
the University to provide quality tertiary education 
through the provision of proper facilities which 
include the buildings, computers and equipment, and 
scholarships for students. 

The Business Place
A sponsorship of  E35 000.00 was offered to ‘The 
Business Place’,  which is a business development service 
provider to rural communities in the Lubombo Region. 
This centre primarily helps farmers set up sustainable 
enterprises by adhering to best farming practices and 
business management principles. The Business Place 
was pioneered by Technoserve Swaziland  in an effort 
to unlock the immense business opportunities that 
will be brought about by the construction of the Lower 
Usuthu Dam in the Lubombo Region.

Swaziland Hospice at Home
The organisation made a donation of E50, 000.00 
towards Swaziland Hospice at Home for the year 
under review. Swaziland Hospice at Home is an 
organisation that has made a positive impact by 
providing health services and hope for the terminally 
ill and the poverty stricken segment of the society we 
operate in.  Our donation is aimed at ensuring that the 
society we work with has, amongst other provisions, a 
sustainable healthy environment. 
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The Directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the Consolidated and separate financial statements of Swaziland Development 
Finance Corporation Limited and its subsidiary (the Group).  The financial statements presented on pages 38 to 121 have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), and include amounts based on judgements and estimates made by management.

The Directors consider that, in preparing the financial statements they have used the most appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all IFRS’s that they consider to be applicable have been followed.  The directors are satisfied that the 
information contained in the financial statements fairly presents the results of operations for the period and the financial position of the Group as at the end of the 
period.

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that accounting records are kept.  The accounting records should disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial 
position and results of the Group to enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with relevant legislation.

The Group operates in an established control environment, which is documented and regularly reviewed. This incorporates risk management and internal control 
procedures, which are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and the risks facing the business are being controlled. 
Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred 
during the period under review.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The directors have no reason to believe that the Group will not be a going concern 
in the year ahead, based on forecasts and available cash resources. These financial statements support the viability of the Group.

The Group’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, audited the financial statements and their report is presented on pages 36 to 37.

The annual financial statements which appear on pages 38 to 121 have been approved by the board of directors on ______________________ and are signed on its 
behalf by:

CHAIRMAN               MANAGING DIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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We have audited the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of Swaziland Development Finance Corporation  Limited which comprise the directors’ 
report, the consolidated and separate statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, 
the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity, the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
and with the requirements of the Swaziland Companies Act 2009. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Except as discussed below, we conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate  financial position of the group as of 31 March 2012 
and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner 
required by the Swaziland Companies Act 2009.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Group Limited - for the year ended 31 March 2012

    36



�����������������������������������������

Supplementary information
The detailed income statement set out on annexure 1 and the taxation schedules on annexure 2 do not form part of the financial statements and are presented as 
additional information.  We have not audited these statements and accordingly we do not express an opinion on them.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Partner: Theo Mason
Chartered Accountant (Swaziland)
Mbabane
Date

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Group Limited - for the year ended 31 March 2012
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT for the year ended 31 March 2012

The Directors take pleasure in presenting a brief review of group operations and group Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

1.  REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

On-Lending

Group loan portfolio increased by 38% over the year under review. This loan portfolio growth has been funded by loan repayments from our clients, as well as 
funding received from financiers. The company managed to source funding totalling E110 million over the period under review, whilst making capital repayments 
totalling E40 million as shown below.

New Funding Received During the Year Total

Norsad Fund 2 800 000.00

Interneuron 100 000 000.00

African Development Bank / Swaziland Government 7 200 000.00
Total  113 900 000.00

Capital Repayments Total

OPEC Loan 4 683 373.00

Industrial Development Corporation Loan (S/A) Loan 19 306 515.00

Interneuron Swaziland Loan 10 000 000.00

NORSAD Fund Loan 5 602 207.00

Standard Bank Loan 472 222.00

Swaziland National Provident Fund Loan 208 161.00

 40 272 541.00
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A total of E338.8 million was disbursed towards loans during the year, and 6571 (six thousand, five hundred and seventy one) new loans to the value of  
E324 million were approved during the year.  A summary of these loans approved and disbursed during the year is shown in this table below:

 Opening Loan   Disbursed Closing Loan
Economic Sector Commitments Loans Approved Number of During the Commitments
 01-Apr-11 During the year New Loans Year 31-Mar-12
     
Agricultural Loans 13 483 232 28 463 973 73 38 016 509 3 930 696
SME Loans 6 686 720 44 806 194 267 48 742 954 2 749 960
Sugar Cane Loans 21 996 454 46 033 848 62 50 258 894 17 771 408
General Purpose Loans 2 283 561 203 172 121 5 779 200 161 278 5 294 404
Micro Loans 2 502 1 364 413 323 1 366 915 -
Kobwa Loan Scheme 6 344 255 355 67 254 848 6 851

 44 458 813 324 095 904 6 571 338 801 398 29 753 319
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1.  REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Key Performance Indicators
The company is reporting improved financial results despite current adverse economic conditions which have seen most businesses experiencing low business activity. Businesses 
which rely on government support for their products and services have particularly struggled as government has cut down on its spending. This is mostly attributable to the large 
decline of Southern African Customs Union (SACU) revenue. Whilst still operating under these economic conditions, the group has posted after tax profits of E7.2million. This is 
a huge achievement when compared to last years’ after tax profits of E1.6million.

Key performance indicators showing the performance of the corporation over the financial year ended 31 March 2012 are shown below:

   Group Company
Ratio 2012 2011 2012 2011 Definition 
     
Profit Margin 13% 5% 3% 5% Net Profit to Interest Income
Portfolio Yield 11% 14% 13% 17% Interest income to gross portfolio
Return on Equity  4% 1% 1% 1% Net profit to Equity
Return on assets 1% 1% 0% 1% Net Profit to Total Assets

Portfolio Quality     
Loan Loss Reserve Ratio 4% 9% 5% 9% Accumulated provisions to gross portfolio
Portfolio at risk  26% 33% 32% 32% Portfolio at risk  to gross portfolio
Write-off Ratio 3% 0% 4% 0% Write-offs to gross portfolio
Risk Coverage Ratio 17% 9% 15% 9% Provision reserve to gross portfolio
Provision Expense Ratio -3% 5% -3% 5% Provision expense to gross portfolio

Financial Management     
Gearing 61% 51% 52% 49% Debt to Total Assets
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.5 0.42 0.46 0.39 Cash operating income + interest expense to annual debt repayments
Financial Expense Coverage  2.1 2.9 2.3 2.9 Interest Income to Interest Expense
Financial Expense Ratio 6% 5% 6% 5% Interest expense to net portfolio
Cost Of Funds Ratio 8% 10% 10% 10% Interest and Fee Expenses on Funding to Total Funding
Liquidity Ratio 4% 7% 5% 7% Cash and Cash Equivalents to Total Assets
Active Clients 9 161 6 586 1 923 1 656 Active Clients
Average loan size 54 382 60 185 147 101 60 185 Net Portfolio to Number of active clients
Portfolio to Assets 89% 84% 84% 84% Net Portfolio to Total Assets

Efficiency and Productivity     
Operating Expense Ratio 117% 132% 145% 155% Financial revenue /( Financial Expense +impairment + operating expense)
Operating Cost Ratio 116% 131% 144% 153% Adjusted financial revenue /adjusted( Financial Expense +impairment + operating   
     expense)
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2. FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Interest Income
Interest generated this year by the group is 2% above last year’s interest income. This indicates stagnant growth owing to the difficult operating environment faced by local businesses.

Interest Expense
Interest expenditure for FINCORP group increased by 40% from last year’s interest expense. This is due to increased borrowings when compared to previous years. Following the 
global financial crisis and general economic meltdown, financiers have responded by reviewing their pricing structures.

Fee Income
With the introduction of some new products over the last two years, non-interest income has grown by 66% from last year. This is also attributable to fee income earned on the 
various loan products. Growth in loan portfolio has impacted positively on fees generated. We are confident that the new products will continue to be attractive to our clients.

Employee Compensation and Benefits
Staff costs for the group increased by only 3% from last year. This marginal growth is due to new engagements over the year under review as necessitated by growth in level of 
operations. Apparently, no salary adjustments were effected during the year in view of the economic meltdown.

Overheads
Operating expenses for the group continued to increase due to increases in fuel prices and other integral operating costs over the year under review. Also, the introduction of 
new products as indicated above, necessitated an increase in marketing costs to ensure that the targeted clientele is fully aware of the diverse product offering and that FINCORP 
maintains visibility in the market place in order to remain competitive.

Provisions 
Since the company revised its lending policies two years ago, the improved risk management and credit appraisal mechanisms has resulted in dynamic provisioning indicating that 
previous year’s impairment provisions are adequate for the group to cover potential losses. This is more so for sugar cane farming projects. With a 70% subsidy from the European 
Union, selected sugar cane projects were resuscitated and are now performing very well. As such total improvement of loans in advances for the period decreased by 11% from last 
financial year.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012

3.    STRATEGIC PLAN

The last strategic plan was covering the period 2007 to 2012. During the year, the company concluded a new five year Strategic Plan that covers the period 2012 to 2017. The Strategic 
Planning was facilitated by Genetics Analytics from South Africa. The new Strategic Plan has already been communicated to all external and internal stakeholders in order to ensure 
complete buy in and appreciation of the future trajectory of the organisation.

The formulation of the new strategy was preceded by an extensive consultation with key stakeholders namely; The Board of Directors, Clients, Staff and Other Business Partners 
which gives us confidence that it is fully representative of the aspirations of all role players. The core pillars of the strategic plan stand as follows:

   FINCORP strategic initiatives 

4. THE MANAGEMENT OF RISK

Risk management framework and objectives
The board acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and communicating appropriate risk and control policies and ensuring that adequate risk management processes are in 
place. The Corporation has a number of committees which deal with the various aspects on policies for accepting risks, including approval of loans and advances, use of limits and 
avoiding undue concentrations of risk as detailed below:

Responsibility for an Audit, Finance and Risk committee
An Audit Committee, appointed by the Corporation’s Board, is in place to assist the Board in discharging its risk management obligations.
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4. THE MANAGEMENT OF RISK (continued)

Responsibility for an Audit, Finance and Risk committee (continued)
The principal objectives of the Corporation’s audit, finance and risk management committee are to:

 Review the Corporation’s risk philosophy, strategy, policies and processes recommended by executive management;
 Review compliance with risk policies and with the overall risk profile of the Corporation
 Review and assess the integrity of the process and procedures for identifying, assessing, recording and monitoring of risk;
 Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Corporation’s risk management function and its implementation by management;
 Ensure that material corporate risks have been identified, assessed and receive attention; and
 Provide the board with an assessment of the state of risk management within the Corporation.
 Act as an effective communication channel between the board on one hand and the external auditors and the head of internal audit on the other;
 Satisfy the board that adequate internal, financial and operating controls are being identified, addressed and monitored by management and that material  

 corporate risks have been identified and are being contained and monitored through the Corporation’s risk committee; and
 Enhance the quality, effectiveness, relevance and communication value of the published financial statements and other public documentation of a financial  

 nature issued by the Corporation, with focus being placed on the actuarial assumptions, parameters, valuations and reporting guidelines and practices adopted  
 by the statutory actuary as appropriate to the Corporation’s life insurance activities.

A significant part of Corporation’s business involves the acceptance and management of risk. Primary responsibility for risk management at an operational level rests with the executive 
committee. The Corporation’s risk management processes, of which the systems of internal, financial and operating controls are an integral part, are designed to control and monitor 
risk throughout the Corporation. For effectiveness, these processes rely on regular communication, sound judgement and a thorough knowledge of the products and markets by the 
people closest to them. Management and various specialist committees are tasked with integrating the management of risk into the day-to-day activities of the Corporation.

Remuneration Committee
The Corporation’s Remuneration Committee principal objectives are as follows:

• Ensuring that the Corporation recruits and retains staff that is of relevant qualification and good calibre for the maintenance of a quality portfolio.
• developing and monitoring strategies and general guidelines for employee compensation, including variable plans and retirement compensation;  
• approving variable pay under the previous year’s plan (beginning of each year); 
• preparation of the long-term variable plan for referral to the Board and subsequent resolution by the General Meeting of Shareholders, and 
• preparation of the targets for variable pay for the following year for resolution by the Board.

Executive Committee
This Committee’s principal objectives are as follows:

 This committee is responsible for all the implementation of the policies and recommendations of the other committees.
 It ensures the proper administration and functioning of the Corporation.
 It ensures proper reporting to all the other committees and third parties.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012

4. THE MANAGEMENT OF RISK (continued)

Credit Committee
The Corporation’s Finance and Credit Committee’s principal objectives pertaining to risk are as follows:
  Ensure that the Corporation ensures approval of high quality of loan investments.
  Ensure compliance to lending policies of the organisation.
  Ensure consistent maintenance of high quality loan portfolio.
  Ensure proper approval of annual budgets and adherence there-to.

5. SPECIAL PROJECTS

a) The Subsidiary, First Finance Company is still in the process of setting up a Branch in Manzini in order to cope with the huge influx of clients who require general 
purpose loans. We believe that the Branch in Manzini will absorb some of the influx at the subsidiary. The company has secured some leased office space in 
Manzini where these operations will be located. However, the building is currently under construction and will be completed in the last quarter of 2012.

b) b) A new product called Invoice Discounting has been introduced by the subsidiary company, First Finance Company during the year. This product is 
designed to assist entrepreneurs who have cash flow challenges because of invoices yet to be settled by their debtors. First Finance advances the client against 
the expected payment. We are hopeful that this product will gain popularity in the next quarter, and also alleviate the difficulties of delayed payments to 
SME’s which can be largely attributed to subdued domestic economic performance.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital is 1000 ordinary shares at E1.00 each of which 100 ordinary shares were  issued at a premium of E84 224.07 per share, and has remained 
unchanged during the year.

7. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend that a dividend be paid in respect of the period under review.
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8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 The directors who acted during the period are:

 Board Member Representing Appointed Resigned / retired   
 Mr Musa Dlamini (Chairperson) Swaziland Government 17 September 2008 
 Mr Dumisani Msibi FINCORP, Acting Managing Director 01 July 2010 
 Mr Musa Mdluli Tibiyo Taka Ngwane 08 September 2005 
 Mr Simanga Simelane Tibiyo Taka Ngwane 08 September 2005 
 Mr Leonard Sithebe Tibiyo Taka Ngwane 01 November 2003 November 2011
 Mr Mandla Mavuso  Swaziland Government 01 June 2009 
 Mrs Phindile Dlamini Swaziland Government 01 January 2011 
 Mr Musa Sibandze  Swaziland Government 01 June 2009 
 Ms Sizakele Dlamini Swaziland Government 01 January 2011 
 Ms Maureen Gabuza  Tibiyo Taka Ngwane 31 March  2012 
 

9. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

 The audit committee members who acted during the period are:
 Mr Musa Mdluli Chairperson, Representing Tibiyo Taka Ngwane
 Mr Simanga Simelane Representing Tibiyo Taka Ngwane
 Ms Phindile Dlamini Representing Swaziland Government
 Ms Sizakele Dlamini Representing Swaziland Government
 Mr Dumisani Msibi Acting Managing Director

10. REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE MEMBERS

 The remuneration committee members who acted during the period are:
 Mr Mandla Mavuso Chairperson, Representing Swaziland Government
 Mr Musa Sibandze Representing Swaziland Government
 Mrs Maureen Gabuza  Representing Tibiyo Taka Ngwane
 Mr Dumisani Msibi Acting Managing Director
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012

11. SECRETARY OF THE CORPORATION

 The Secretary of the Corporation is: Mr Ntshalintshali Sikolemaswati.

12. BANKERS

 The Bankers of the Corporation are:

 First National Bank Swaziland Limited Nedbank Swaziland Limited
 P O Box 261  P O Box 68
 Eveni Mbabane
 Swaziland Swaziland

 Standard Bank Swaziland Limited
 P O Box A294
 Swazi Plaza

13. BUSINESS AND POSTAL ADDRESS OF THE CORPORATION

 Business address: Postal address:
 7th Floor, Dlanubeka Building P O Box 6099
 Corner of Mdada and Lalufadlana Streets Mbabane
 Mbabane Swaziland

14. AUDITORS

 The auditors of the Corporation are PricewaterhouseCoopers

 Business address: Postal address:
 MTN Office Park P O Box 569
 Karl Grant Street Mbabane
 Mbabane  Swaziland
 Swaziland H100
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15. EVENTS SINCE BALANCE SHEET DATE
 
 Events since the balance sheet date:

 (a) have been fully taken into account insofar as they have a bearing on the amounts attributable to assets and/or liabilities at that date;

 (b) apart from changes in the ordinary course of business, have not made the present financial position substantially different from that shown by the   
 balance sheet;

 (c) have not required adjustments to the fair value measurements and disclosures included in the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2012

    Group  Company
  Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
      
 Interest income 29 55 494 54 670 50 326 55 834
 Interest expense 30 (26 119) (18 654) (20 899) (18 159)

 Net interest income   29 375 36 016 29 427 37 675
 Fee income 31 26 874 15 366 1 249 1 110
 Net trading income/(expense) 32 (209) 806 (209) 806
 Other operating income 33 2 840 1 635 7 681 4 621

 Net interest income before impairment of loans and advances  58 880 53 823 38 148 44 212
 Impairment of loans and advance 41 (16 723) (18 817) (10 871) (16 445)

 Net interest income after impairment of loans and advances  42 157 35 006 27 277 27 767 
Employee compensation and benefits 35 (17 601) (17 065) (14 090) (14 242)

 General and administrative expenses  (11 483) (13 187) (8 243) (10 857)
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of 
 intangible assets 38 (896)  (958) (738) (770)
 Income from operations 34 12 177 3 796 4 206 1 898 
 Income tax expense 36 (5 545) (1 186) (3 155) (613)

 Profit/(loss) for the year  6 632 2 610 1 051 1 285

 Other comprehensive income       
 

 Cash flow hedges  575 (963) 575 (963)
 Gains/(losses) arising during the year 52 575 (963) 575 (963)
   7 207 1 647 1 626 322
 Total comprehensive income for the year 

 Total comprehensive income Attributable to:  7 207 1 647 1 626 322
 
   7 207 1 647 1 626 322
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 March 2012

   Group  Company
  Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
      
 ASSETS          
 Property, plant and equipment 38 6 368 6 167 5 622 5 357
 Intangible assets 39 599  751 599 751
 Loans and advances 40 480 776 360 109 357 920 305 307
 Investment in subsidiary 45 - - 11 436 11 436
 Financial investments  42 1 522 1 523 1 522 1 523
 Derivative financial instruments 52 231 334 231 334
 Other assets and accrued interest 43 31 390 28 046 30 766 54 187
 Cash and cash equivalents 44 20 948 60 580 19 252 60 542
 Deferred tax asset 37  733 -  639 -

 Total assets  542 567 457 510 427 987 439 437

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES           
 Shareholders’ funds 
 Ordinary share capital 46 - - - -
 Share premium 46 134 225 134 225 134 225 134 225
 General risk reserve 47 8 223 6 830 7 158 6 106
 Hedging reserve- cash flow hedges  105 (470) 105  (470)
 Retained income  39 885 34 646 34 045 34 046

 Total equity  182 438 175 231 175 533 173 907

 Liabilities     
 Borrowings 48 310 075  219 532 210 075 209 532
 Bank overdraft 44 - 20 059 - 15 921
 Derivative financial instruments 52 - 470  - 470
 Deferred tax Liability 37 - 6 - 44
 Trade and other payable 49 44 758 38 048 39 592 36 137
 Taxation  payable 50 2 773 3 268 630 2 657
 Provisions 51 2 523 896 2 157 769

 Total liabilities  360 129 282 279 252 454 265 530

 Total equity and liabilities  542 567 457 510 427 987 439 437
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2012

     Hedging
     Reserve
  Share Share General Cash flow Retained Total
  capital premium Risk reserve hedges Income Equity
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
      
 GROUP      
 2011      
 Balance at 31 March 2011 - 134 225 6 830 (470) 34 646 175 231
 Shareholders capital  contribution - - - - - - 
 Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 575 6 632 7 207
 Profit for the year - - - - 6 632 6 632 
 Other comprehensive Income - - - 575 - 575  

 Transfer from General Risk Reserve - - 1 393 - (1 393) -
 
 Balance at 31 March 2012 - 134 225 8 223 105 39 885 182 438
     
     Hedging
     Reserve
  Share Share General Cash flow Retained Total
  capital premium Risk reserve hedges Income Equity
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
 
 GROUP      
 2010      
 Balance at 31 March 2010 - 84 225 5 799 493 33 069 123 584
 Shareholders capital  contribution - 50 000 - - - 50 000
 Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (963) 2 610 1 647
 Profit for the year - - -  2 610 2 610
 Other comprehensive Income - - - (963) - (963)

 Transfer from General Risk Reserve - - 1 031 - (1 031) -
 
 Balance at 31 March 2011 - 134 225  6 830 (470) 34 646 175 231
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     Hedging
     Reserve
  Share Share General Cash flow Retained Total
  capital premium Risk reserve hedges Income Equity
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
      
 COMPANY      
 2011      
 Balance at 31 March 2011 - 134 225  6 106 (470) 34 046 173 907
 Shareholders capital  contribution- - - - - - - 
 Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 575 1 052 1 626
 Profit for the year - - - - 1 052 1 052
 Other comprehensive Income - - - 575 - 575 

 Transfer from General Risk Reserve - - 1 052 - (1 052) -
 
 Balance at 31 March 2012 - 134 225 7 158 105 34 045 175 533

     Hedging
     Reserve
  Share Share General Cash flow Retained Total
  capital premium Risk reserve hedges Income Equity
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
 
 COMPANY      
 2010      
 Balance at 31 March 2010 - 84 225 5 799 493 33 068 123 585
 Shareholders capital  contribution - 50 000 - - - 50 000
 Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (963) 1 285 322
 Profit for the year - - -  1 285 1 285
 Other comprehensive Income - - - (963) - (963)

 Transfer from General Risk Reserve - - 307 - 307 -
 
 Balance at 31 March 2011 - 134 225  6 106 (470) 34 046 173 907
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2012

    Group  Company
  Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
      
 Cash flows from operating activities     
 Cash (utilised)/generated from operations 55 (102 358) (54 415) (19 165) (40 405)
 Income taxes paid 50 (6 780) (7 025) ( 5 864)  (7 025)

   (109 138) (61 440) (25 029) (47 430)

 Cash flows from investing activities     
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment  38 (1 146) (4 245) (1 051) (4 154)
 Purchase of  intangible assets 39 (95) (887) (95)  (887)
 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  263 49 263 49

   (978) (5 083) (883) (4 992)

 Cash flows from financing activities     
 Equity contribution by shareholders 46 - 50 000 - 50 000
 Proceeds from long-term financing  90 543 131 189 543 121 189
 Long term loans repayments  - (57 188) - (57 188)
 Finance lease principal repayments  - (511) - (511)

   90 543 123 490 543 113 490

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (19 573) 56 968 (25 369) 61 068
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  40 521 (16 447) 44 621 (16 447)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  44 20 948 40 521 19 252 44 621
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1. General Information

 Swaziland Development Finance Corporation (‘the company’) and its subsidiary (together, “the group”) carries on the business of advancing business and consumer loans 
to members of the public.

 Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Swaziland.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to 
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

 The consolidated financial statements of Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), IFRIC Interpretations and Swaziland Companies Act of 2009 provisions applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have 
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings. The following are measured at fair value; derivative financial 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets.

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its 
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in accounting policy 1.2.

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the company

 There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2011 that would be expected to have a 
material impact on the group.

(b)  New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2011 and not early adopted

•	 IFRS	9,	 ‘Financial	instruments’,	addresses	the	classification,	measurement	and	recognition	of	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities.	IFRS	9	was	issued	in	November	
2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be 
classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The 
classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial 
liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part 
of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting 
mismatch. The group is yet to assess IFRS 9’s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

•	 IFRS	10,	Consolidated	financial	statements’	builds	on	existing	principles	by	identifying	the	concept	of	control	as	the	determining	factor	in	whether	an	entity	should	
be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control 
where this is difficult to assess. The group is yet to assess IFRS 10’s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 10 no later than the accounting period beginning on or after 
1 January 2013.

•	 IFRS	12,	 ‘Disclosures	of	 interests	 in	other	entities’	 includes	 the	disclosure	 requirements	 for	all	 forms	of	 interests	 in	other	entities,	 including	 joint	arrangements,	
associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The group is yet to assess IFRS 12’s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no later than the 
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

•	 IFRS	13,	‘Fair	value	measurement’,	aims	to	improve	consistency	and	reduce	complexity	by	providing	a	precise	definition	of	fair	value	and	a	single	source	of	fair	value	
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of 
fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs or US GAAP. 
The group is yet to assess IFRS13’s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 13 no later than the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

 There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the group.

3. Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries
 Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying 

a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.

 The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. 
The group also assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of 
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise in circumstances where the size of the group’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders 
give the group the power to govern the financial and operating policies, etc.

 Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

 The group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the 
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the group. 
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3. Consolidation (continued)

 (a) Subsidiaries
 The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 

and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of 
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

 Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent 
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change 
to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

 Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company 
transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies 
adopted by the group.

 (b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control
 Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners in their 

capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded 
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

 (c) Disposal of subsidiaries
 When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount 

recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or 
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed 
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

4. Foreign currency translation

 (a) Functional and presentation currency
 Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates 

(‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Lilangeni (E), which is the company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.



�����������������������������������������

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012
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4. Foreign currency translation (continued)

 (b) Transactions and balances
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are 

re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net 
investment hedges. 

 Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other 
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains – net’.

 (c)  Group companies
 The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from 

the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) (assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(b)   income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect 
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working 
condition for its intended use. After recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment shall be carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the reducing balance method to write off the cost or revalued amount of the asset to their residual value over their 
estimated useful lives as follows:

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:-

 Computer Equipment 33⅓%
 Furniture and fittings 10%
 Office furniture 10%
 Motor vehicle 20%

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in operating profit. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts 
included in fair value reserves are transferred to retained earnings.
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5. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

 Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying 
amount of the assets when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing assets will flow to the 
Corporation. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related assets.

6. Intangible assets

 Computer software

 Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design 
and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

 it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
 management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
 there is an ability to use or sell the software product;
 it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;
 adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product are available; and
 the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

 Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant 
overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense 
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

 Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed three years.

7. Impairment of non-financial assets

 Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the 
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets 
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

8. Loans and advances

 Loans and advances are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers. They are derecognised when either borrower(s) repay their obligations, or the loans are sold or 
written off, or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment losses. Where loans and advances are hedged by derivatives designated 
and qualifying as fair value hedges, the carrying value of the loans and advances so hedged includes a fair value adjustment for the hedged risk only.
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9. Loans and advance impairment
 Losses for impaired loans are recognised promptly when there is objective evidence that impairment of a loan or portfolio of loans has occurred. Impairment allowances 

are calculated on individual loans and on Corporations of loans assessed collectively. Impairment losses are recorded as charges to the income statement. The carrying 
amount of impaired loans on the statement of financial position is reduced through the use of impairment allowance accounts. Losses expected from future events are not 
recognised.

 Individually assessed loans and advances
 For all loans that are considered individually significant, the Corporation assesses on a case-by-case basis at each statement of financial position date whether there is any 

objective evidence that a loan is impaired. For those loans where objective evidence of impairment exists, impairment losses are determined considering the following factors:
 the Corporation’s aggregate exposure to the customer;
 the viability of the customer’s business model and their capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficulties and generate sufficient cash flow to service debt 

obligations;
 the amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;
 the likely dividend available on liquidation or bankruptcy;
 the extent of other creditors’ commitments ranking ahead of, or pari passu with, the Corporation and the likelihood of other creditors continuing to support the 

Corporation;
 the complexity of determining the aggregate amount and ranking of all creditor claims and the extent to which legal and insurance uncertainties are evident;
 the realisable value of security (or other credit mitigants) and likelihood of successful repossession;
 the likely deduction of any costs involved in recovery of amounts outstanding;

Impairment losses are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows of a loan at its original effective interest rate, and comparing the resultant present value with 
the loan’s current carrying amount.

 Write-off of loans and advances
 A loan (and the related impairment allowance account) is normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery of the principal 

amount and, for a collateralised loan, when the proceeds from realising the security have been received.

 Reversals of impairment

 If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, 
the excess is written back by reducing the loan impairment allowance account accordingly. The write back is recognised in the income statement.

 Renegotiated/rescheduled loans
 Loans subject to impairment assessment whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered past due, but are treated as new loans for measurement purposes 

once the minimum number of payments required under the new arrangements has been received. Loans subject to individual impairment assessment, whose terms have 
been renegotiated, are subject to ongoing review to determine whether they remain impaired or should be considered past due. The carrying amounts of loans that have 
been classified as renegotiated retain this classification until maturity or derecognition.
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9. Loans and advance impairment (continued)

 Assets acquired in exchange for loans
 Non-financial assets acquired in exchange for loans as part of an orderly realisation are recorded as assets held for sale and reported in ‘Other assets’. The asset acquired is 

recorded at the lower of its fair value (less costs to sell) and the carrying amount of the loan (net of impairment allowance) at the date of exchange. No depreciation is charged 
in respect of assets held for sale. Any subsequent write-down of the acquired asset to fair value less costs to sell is recognised in the income statement, in ‘Other operating 
income’. Any subsequent increase in the fair value less costs to sell, to the extent this does not exceed the cumulative write down, is also recognised in ‘Other operating 
income’, together with any realised gains or losses on disposal.

10. Finance and Operating leases

 Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Corporation has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are 
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. 

 Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.  The corresponding rental 
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.  The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases 
is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

 Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases 
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.  In all significant leasing arrangements 
in place during the year, the Corporation acted as a lessee.

11. Share capital

 Shares are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash or other financial assets. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity 
instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

 When such shares are subsequently sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in ‘Total shareholders’ equity’, net of any directly 
attributable incremental transaction costs and related income tax effects.

12. Financial assets

 The group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The classification depends 
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

 (a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the  

 purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as  
 current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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12. Financial assets (continued)

 (b)    Loans and receivables
 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, 

except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The group’s loans and receivables comprise 
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position.

 (c)    Available-for-sale financial assets
 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-

current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

 Recognition and measurement

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially 
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from 
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for- sale financial assets and 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

 Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the income statement within ‘other 
(losses)/gains – net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part 
of other income when the group’s right to receive payments is established.

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

 When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the income statement as 
‘gains and losses from investment securities’. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income statement as 
part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the group’s right to receive 
payments is established.

13. Offset of financial assets and liabilities

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset in the amount represented in the statement of financial position when the Corporation has a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amount, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
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14. Impairment of financial assets

 The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated.

 Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or 
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease 
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

 For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for 
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the group may measure impairment on the basis 
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised 
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

15. Revenue recognition

 Revenue comprises of interest income accounted in the income statement on the accrual method. Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the 
completion of the specific transaction assessed as the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services provided when it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the Corporation and the amount of revenue, and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.

 (a)    Interest income
 Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Corporation reduces the carrying amount 

to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as 
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised either as cash is collected or on a cost–recovery basis as conditions warrant.

 From an operational perspective, it suspends the accrual of interest on a loan when its recovery is considered doubtful. However, in terms of IAS 39 interest income on 
impaired advances is thereafter recognised based on the original effective interest rate used to determine the recoverable amount.
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15. Revenue recognition

 (b) Non-interest income

 Fee income
 The Corporations earns fee income from a diverse range of services provided to its customers. Fee income comprise mainly of application fee, loan monitoring fee, 

administration fee and management fee. Fee income is accounted for as follows:
 income earned on the execution of a significant act is recognised as revenue when the act is completed (for example, project monitoring)
 income earned from the provision of services is recognised as revenue as the services are provided (for example, asset management, portfolio and other management 

advisory and service fees); and
 Income which forms an integral part loan or project appraisal (application fee) is recognised when the application of loan is being approved.

 Net trading income/ (expense)
 Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading, together with related interest 

income, expense and dividends.

 Dividend income
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. This is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.

 Commission income
 The Corporation recognises commission income on an accrual basis when the service is rendered.

16. General Risk Reserve

 General provisions which are calculated at 2% of the net loans after specific provisions are dealt with within the statement of changes in equity as appropriation of retained 
earnings. This treatment is in accordance with the Corporation policies.

17. Financial Instruments

 Financial instruments carried in the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, investments, receivables, trade creditors, leases and borrowings and 
derivatives. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

(1) Financial risk factors

 The Corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including currency risk, fair value interest risk and price risk. The Corporation’s overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Corporation.  
The Corporation uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.
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17. Financial Instruments

 Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Management identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Corporation operating units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such 
as interest rate risk, credit risk and investing excess liquidity.

a) Market risk
 Market risk comprised of three types of risks, namely: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

i) Foreign exchange risk
 Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 The Corporation operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with the US dollar. Foreign exchange 
risk arises when from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

 To manage the foreign currency exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, the Corporation use forward contracts. Foreign 
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in the currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

 As at 31 March 2012, if the Lilangeni weakened by 5% against the US dollar with all the other variables held constant, post tax profits for the year would have been E104 470 
(2011: E 277 323) lesser mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses on the translation of US dollar denominated borrowings.

ii) Price risk
 Price risk includes equity price risk and cash flow and interest rate risk.

 1) Equity Price risk

 Equity price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

 The Corporation is currently not exposed to equity price risk because at the statement of financial position date there were no investments held by the Corporation and 
classified either as available for sale or at fair value through profit and loss.

 The permanent shares at Swaziland Building Society classified as “available-for-sale” are not exposed the equity price risk since they are redeemable at nominal value.

iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
 2)  Commodity Price risk 

 Commodity price risk arises from the risk of an adverse effect on current or future earnings resulting from fluctuations in the prices of commodities.

 The Corporation is also not exposed to commodity price risk. As the Corporation is not trading on commodity, therefore the risk is not considered.
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iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

 2)  Commodity Price risk 

 Cash flow and interest rate risk is the risk that the value and cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

 As the Corporation has significant interest-bearing assets, the Corporation’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in the market interest 
rates. The Corporation has no policies in place to hedge against fluctuating interest rate. 

 The Corporation’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Corporation to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings 
and long-term loans issued at fixed rates expose the Corporation to fair value interest rate risk. Currently there are no loans issued at fixed interest rate, however, linked to 
prime lending rate and as such the Corporation is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

 During 2012 and 2011, the Corporation’s borrowings at variable rates were denominated in the Swaziland lilangeni and US Dollars.

 The Corporation analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions, 
alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the Corporation calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. The scenarios are run 
only for liabilities that represent the major interest-bearing positions. 

 A change of 50 basis points in prime lending rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss after tax by the amounts shown below. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011:

 GROUP AND COMPANY  Profit or loss  Equity
    2012 2011 2012 2011
    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
 Increase of 50 basis points  1 553 1 198 905 876
 Decrease of 50 basis points  1 553 (1 198) (905) (876)

 The simulation is done on a quarterly basis to verify that the maximum loss potential is within the limit given by the management.

 The table below gives an indication of the Group’s monetary sensitivity to changes in interest rates in 2012.

    Financial  Loans and
    Investment Cash at bank advance Borrowings
    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
 Base amounts  1 522 19 252 357 920 210 075
 Interest plus 1%  1 537 19 444 361 499 212 176
 Interest less 1%  1 507 19 060 354 341 207 974
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17. Financial Instruments (continued)

b) Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Corporation to incur a financial loss.

 The Corporation has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterpart will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.  Key areas where the Corporation is exposed 
to credit risk are:

  -    loans and advances,
  - other assets,
  - Derivative financial instruments
  - Cash and cash equivalents
  - Deposits with banks and other financial institutions.

 The Corporation structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterpart, or Corporations of counterparties. Such risks are 
subject to an annual or more frequent review.

 The major concentration of credit risk arises from the Corporation’s receivables and investment securities in relation to the nature of customers and issuers.  No collateral is 
required in respect of financial assets. Reputable financial institutions are used for investing and cash handling purposes. 

 Mechanisms are in place to monitor the risk of default by individual loan holders. Exposures to individual loan holders and Corporation of loan holders are collected within 
the ongoing monitoring of the controls associated with regulatory solvency.  Where there exists significant exposure to individual loan holders, or homogenous Corporation 
of loan holders, a financial analysis carried out by the Corporation.

 Quality control and risk department makes regular reviews to assess the degree of compliance with the Corporation procedures on credit and the overall control environment. 

 At the statement of financial position date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.  The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value 
of each financial asset in the statement of financial position.
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iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

c)  Credit risk (continued) 
  The table below shows the security deposit and balance of the ten major counterparties at the statement of financial position date.

  GROUP AND COMPANY

   31 March 2012  31 March 2011

  Security  Security
Counterparty  Balance Deposit Balance deposit
   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    
Swaziland Industrial Development Company Limited 3 863 5 000 - -
SWAFCU  4 622 - - -
Hhohho Cotton Growers  24 171 29 000 11 999 8 900
Mlobi Investment (Pty) Ltd  6 447 6 000 4 047 4 000
Emtini (Pty) Ltd  29 136 40 000 14 339 23 000
DD4 Investments (Pty) Ltd - lease  15 278 15 000 7 929 7 000
Mzamo Farmers Association  4 873   6 000 4 697 3 000
Lihlanti Investements (Pty) Ltd   3 950 3 600 - -
Nkwanyana Christopher T  7 777 5 000 7 617 2 500
Mtfwalo Sugar  Cane Farming  5 379 4 000 4 719 4 200

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does expect losses from non-performance by some of these counterparties.

d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.  The Corporation maintains sufficient cash and near cash assets to meet its liquidity commitments. Due to the dynamic 
nature of the underlying businesses, the Corporation aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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17. Financial Instruments (continued)

d) Liquidity risk

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Corporation’s liquidity reserve (comprises undrawn borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash 
flow.

Forecasted liquidity reserve per 31 March 2012 is as follows:

 31-Mar-2013 2014 – 2015
 E’000 E’000
  

Opening balance for the period 20 000 118 336
Net Operating Proceeds 67 101 143 070
Net Operating Outflows (47 614) (79 123)
Net cash received from investing activities (14 085) (58 031)
Net cash inflow from financing Activities 27 569 17 308

At End of the year 52 971 141 560

The table below analyses the Corporation’s financial into relevant maturity groups based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity 
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant.
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17. Financial Instruments (continued)

d) Liquidity risk (continued)

 GROUP

 31 March 2012 
  Between 1 Between 2 
 Less than and and Over
 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

Financial Liabilities:     
Trade and other payables 44 758 - - - 44 758
Bank overdraft - - - - -
Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
Other short-term liabilities 2 523 - - - 2 523
Long term liabilities 186 390 77 686 33 578 12 421 310 075
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
 233 671 77 686 33 578 12 421 357 356

31 March 2011
Financial Liabilities:     
Trade and other payables 38 048 - - - 38 048
Bank overdraft 20 059 - - - 20 059
Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
Other short-term liabilities  896 - - - 896
Long term liabilities 25 000 6 678 105 904 81 949 219 532
Derivative financial instruments - - - 470 470 
 84 003 6 678 105 904 82 419 279 005
COMPANY     
31 March 2012     
Financial Liabilities:     
Trade and other payables 40 829 - - - 40 829 
Bank overdraft - - - - -
Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
Other short-term liabilities 2 157  - - - 2 157 
Long term liabilities 86 390 77 686 33 578 12 241 210 075
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -

  129 376 77 686 33 578 12 241 253 061
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17. Financial Instruments (continued)

d) Liquidity risk (continued)

 COMPANY (continued)

 
   Between 1 Between 2 
  Less than and and Over
  1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

31 March 2011     
Financial Liabilities:     
Trade and other payables 36 137 - - - 36 137
Bank overdraft 15 921 - - - 15 921
Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
Other short-term liabilities 769 - - - 769
Long term liabilities 25 000 6 678 105 904 71 949 209 532
Derivative financial instruments - - - 470 470 

  77 827 6 678 105 904 72 419 262 829

The Corporation’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns and benefits for shareholders 
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Corporation may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell 
assets to reduce debt or enter into further financing as applicable.

The Corporation monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including 
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the Statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the statement 
of financial position plus net debt.
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17. Financial Instruments (continued)

(2) Capital risk management (continued)

 During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which show a negative change from 2011, was to maintain the gearing ratio (before interest accrual is taken into account) of 50%. The 
gearing ratios before interest accrual at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were as follows: 

   Group  Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    

 Total borrowings  310 075 239 591 210 075 225 453
 Long term borrowings (Note 48)  310 075 219 532 210 075 209 532
 Bank overdraft (Note 44)  - 20 059 - 15 921
 Less: cash and cash equivalents  (20 948) (60 580) (19 252) (60 542)     
 Net debt  289 127 179 011 190 823 164 911
 Total equity  182 999 175 231 176 094 173 907

 Total capital  472 126 354 242 366 917 338 818

 Gearing ratio  61% 51% 52% 49%

The increase in the gearing ratio during 2012 resulted primarily from the loan from Interneuron amounting to E 100 million obtained during the current year.

(3) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active market (such as trading and available for sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial position 
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Corporation is the current bid price.

The carrying value of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables. The fair value of financial 
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Corporation for similar 
financial instruments.

For financial assets and liabilities with maturity of less than one year, the face value less any estimated credit adjustments are assumed to approximate their fair values.

Effective 1 January 2006, the company adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value, this requires 
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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17. Financial Instruments (continued)

 GROUP

      Derivatives   
     designated   
   Cash and  as fair value   
 Loans and  cash Fiancial hedging   
 advance Other assets equivalents instruments instruments Total 
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

As at 31 March 2012      
Fair value measurement hierarchy levels:      
- Level 1 - - - - - -
- Level 2 - - - - 231 231
- Level 3 480 776 31 390 20 948 1 522 - 534 636
  480 776 31 390 20 948 1 522 231 534 867

As at 31 March 2011      
Fair value measurement hierarchy levels:      
- Level 1 - - - - - -
- Level 2 - - - - - 334
- Level 3 360 109 28 046 60 580 1 523 - 420 257
  360 109 28 046 60 580 1 523 334 420 591

COMPANY

As at 31 March 2012      
Fair value measurement hierarchy levels:      
- Level 1 - - - - - -
- Level 2 - - - - 231 231
- Level 3 357 920 30 766 19 248 1 522 - 409 456
  357 920 30 766 19 248 1 522 231 409 687
As at 31 March 2011      
Fair value measurement hierarchy levels:      
- Level 1 - - - - - - 
- Level 2 - - - - 334 334
- Level 3 305 307 54 188 60 542 1 523 - 421 559
 305 307 54 188 60 542 1 523 334 421 893
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18. Derivative financial instruments and hedging accounting

 Derivatives are recognised initially, and are subsequently re-measured, at fair value. Fair values of exchange traded derivatives are obtained from quoted market prices. Fair 
values of over-the-counter derivatives are obtained using valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. All derivatives are carried as 
assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

 Derivatives may be embedded in other financial instruments, for example, a convertible bond with an embedded conversion option. Embedded derivatives are treated as 
separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely related to those of the host contract; the terms of the embedded derivative would 
meet the definition of a stand-alone derivative if they were contained in a separate contract; and the combined contract is not held for trading or designated at fair value. These 
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes therein recognised in the income statement.

 Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive or as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different transactions 
are only offset if the transactions are with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset exists, and the parties intend to settle the cash flows on a net basis. 

 The method of recognising fair value gains and losses depends on whether derivatives are held for trading or are designated as hedging instruments, and if the latter, the nature 
of the risks being hedged. All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

 Changes in the fair value of the effective portions of derivatives that are designed and qualify as fair value hedges and that prove to be highly effective in relation to hedged risk, 
are recorded in the income statement, along with the corresponding change in fair value of the hedged asset or liability.

 Certain derivative transactions, while providing economic hedges under the risk management policies, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules in IAS 39 and 
are therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with fair value gains and losses reported in income.

 Hedge accounting

 On the date a derivative is entered into, the Corporation designates certain derivates as either:

 i) a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability (“fair value hedge”), or
 ii) a hedge of a future cash flow attributable to a recognised asset or liability, a forecasted transaction or a firm commitment (“cash flow hedge”).

 At the inception of a hedging relationship, the Corporation documents the relationship between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, its risk management objective 
and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Corporation also requires a documented assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether or not the 
hedging instruments, primarily derivatives, that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting the changes attributable to the hedged risks in the fair values 
or cash flows of the hedged items. Interest on designated qualifying hedges is included in ‘Net interest income’.
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18. Derivative financial instruments and hedging accounting  (continued)

 Hedge accounting (continued)

 Fair value hedge
 Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedging instruments are recorded in the income statement, along with changes in the fair 

value of the hedged assets, liabilities or Corporation thereof that are attributable to the hedged risk. 

 If a hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortised to the income 
statement based on a recalculated effective interest rate over the residual period to maturity, unless the hedged item has been derecognised, in which case, it is released to the 
income statement immediately.

 Cash flow hedge
 The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in equity within the cash flow hedging reserve. 

Any gain or loss in fair value relating to an ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. 

 Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect profit or loss. However, when the forecast transaction 
that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and 
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

 When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time 
remains in equity until the forecast transaction is eventually recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative 
gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

 The Corporation had not entered into a cash flow hedge arrangement or designated any derivative as such at year-end.

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

 All gains and losses from changes in the fair values of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement. These gains and 
losses are reported in ‘Net trading income’. Currently, the Corporation does not hold any derivative that does not qualify for hedge accounting.

19. Taxation

 Deferred income taxes
 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 

the financial statements. Currently enacted tax rates are used in the determination of deferred income tax.
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19. Taxation

 Deferred income taxes (continued)

 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred 
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary difference arising from the following differences:

  i) The excess of book values of fixed assets over their written down values for tax purposes;
  ii) The excess of book values of finance leases over their written down values for tax purposes;
  iii) Income and expenditure in the financial statements of the current year dealt with in other years for tax purposes.

 Current Tax
 The charge for the current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profits for the current period. It is calculated using tax rate that have been enacted 

or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date.

20. Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Corporation expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an 
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

 The Corporation recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under the contract.

 Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments, and are recognised in the period in which the Corporation becomes legally 
or constructively committed to payment. Costs related to the ongoing activities of the Corporation are not provided in advance.

21. Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on 
hand, deposits held with banks, other short term high liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. 

 Bank overdrafts are included within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

22. Property in possession

 In certain circumstances, property is repossessed following the foreclosure on loans that are in default. Repossessed properties are measured at the lower of carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell and reported within ‘Other assets’.
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23. Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A 
provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Corporation will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the 
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted 
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

24. Borrowings

 Borrowings are recognised initially at the fair value of proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred, when they become party to the contractual provisions. Borrowings 
are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method; any difference between the proceed (net of transaction value) and the redemption value is 
recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings.

25. Employee benefits

 Short-term employee benefits
 The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The provision for employee entitlements to 

salaries and annual leave represent the amount that the Corporation has a present obligation to pay, as a result of employees’ services provided up to the statement of financial 
position date.  The provision has been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary rates.

 Pension Obligations
 The Corporation operates a defined contribution plan. The Corporation pays contributions to a privately administered pension plan on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary 

basis. Once the contributions have been paid, the Corporation has no further payment obligations. The regular contributions constitute net periodic costs for the year in which 
they are due and as such are included in staff costs.

 Termination benefits
 Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy 

in exchange for these benefits. The Corporation recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate the employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits 
falling due more than 12 months after statement of financial position date are discounted to present value.

 Performance bonus
 A liability for employee benefits in the form of performance bonus is recognised in current provisions when there is no alternative but to settle the liability, and at least one of 

the following conditions is met;

 - there is a formal plan and the amounts to be paid are determined before the time of issuing the financial statements; or 
 - past practice has created a valid expectation by employees that they will receive a bonus and the amount can be determined before the time of issuing the financial statements.

 Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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26. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical information, experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

 The corporation makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimate will by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of loans and receivables within the next financial year as 
discussed below.  

 Estimated impairment of loans and receivables 
 The Corporation tests annually whether loans and receivables suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in 23. The recoverable amounts of loans 

and receivables have been determined based on discount cash inflows. These calculations require the use of estimates (Note 40 and 41). 

27. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

 Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired; or when the Corporation has transferred its contractual right to 
receive the cash flows of the financial assets, and either:

 – Substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred; or
 – The Corporation has neither retained nor transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, but has not retained control.

 Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

28. Comparative Figures

 Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.
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    Group  Company
    2012 2011 2012 2011
   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    

29 Interest income    

 Revenue consists of the aggregate of interest income received and accrued.    
 The analysis of interest income by category/section is as follows:    
 Business loans   13 289 13 125 13 289 13 125
 Micro loans   158 392 158 392
 Consumer loans   23 168 16 836 - -
 Intercompany loan   - - 18 000 18 000
 Agriculture loans   9 870 9 279 9 870 9 279
 Sugar cane loans   9 009 15 038 9 009 15 038

 Total interest income   55 494 54 670 50 326 55 834

29.1 The analysis of interest income by measurement is as follows:    
     
 COMPANY    
    Loans and
    Advance - Interest in  
    Gross Suspense Total
    E’000 E’000 E’000
 31 March 2012    
 Business loans   13 289 - 13 289
 Micro loans   158 - 158
 Consumer loans   - - -
 Intercompany loan   18 000 - 18 000
 Agriculture loans   9 870 - 9 870
 Sugar cane loans   9 009 - 9 009
    50 326 - 50 326

 31 March 2011    
 Business loans   13 182 (56) 13 125

 Micro loans   392 - 392
 Consumer loans   - - -
 Intercompany loan   18 000 - 18 000
 Agriculture loans   9 279 - 9 279
 Sugar cane loans   15 038 - 15 038
    55 891 (56) 55 834
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29.1 The analysis of interest income by measurement is as follows: (continued)   Loans and Advance - Interest in  
    Gross Suspense Total
    E’000 E’000 E’000

 31 March 2012   
 Business loans   13 289 - 13 289
 Micro loans   158 - 158
 Consumer loans   23 168 - 23 168
 Agriculture loans   9 870 - 9 870
 Sugar cane loans   9 009 - 9 009
    55 494 - 55 494

 31 March 2011   
 Business loans   13 182 (56) 13 126
 Micro loans   392 - 392
 Consumer loans   16 836 - 16 836
 Agriculture loans   9 279 - 9 279
 Sugar cane loans   15 038 - 15 038 
    54 727 (56) 54 671

    Group  Company
    2012 2011 2012 2011

30 Interest expenditure    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 The analysis of interest expense by category is as follows:    
 Bank overdraft   2 105 1 217 1 781 938
 Finance leases   - 18 - 18
 Interest payable on long term loans   24 014 17 419 19 118 17 203

    26 119 18 654 20 899 18 159

30.1 The analysis of interest expenditure by measurement is as follows:    
 COMPANY    Measured at Measured at
     fair value amortised cost Total
     E’000 E’000 E’000

 31 March 2012   
 Bank overdraft    1 781 - 1 781
 Finance leases    - - -
 Interest payable on long term loans    - 19 118 19 118
 Total interest expense    1 781 19 118 20 899
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30 Interest expenditure (continued)

30.1 The analysis of interest expenditure by measurement is as follows:

 COMPANY    Measured at Measured at
     fair value amortised cost Total
     E’000 E’000 E’000
 31 March 2011   
 Bank overdraft    938 - 938
 Finance leases    18 - 18
 Interest payable on long term loans    - 17 203 17 203

 Total interest expense    956 17 203 18 159

 GROUP    Measured at Measured at
     fair value amortised cost Total
     E’000 E’000 E’000

 31 March 2012   
 Bank overdraft    2 105 - 2 105
 Finance leases    - - -
 Interest payable on long term loans    - 24 014 24 014
 
 Total interest expense    2 105 24 014 26 119

      Measured at Measured at
     fair value amortised cost Total
     E’000 E’000 E’000
 31 March 2011   
 Bank overdraft    1 217 - 1 217
 Finance leases    18  - 18
 Interest payable on long term loans    - 17 419 17 419

 Total interest expense    1 235 17 419 18 654
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

31 Fee income   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Facility fee  975 987 975 987
 Application fee  696 475 149 123
 Loan Monitoring fee  - - - -
 Settlement fee  679 700 2 -
 Administration fee  24 524 13 204 123 -

   26 874 15 366 1 249 1 110

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

32 Net trading income/(expense)           

 Fair value adjustments on currency swap      
 Foreign exchange losses on long term loan  209 1 045 209 1 045
 - Forward foreign exchange contracts- fair value hedge (418) (239) (418) (239)

   (209) 806 (209) 806

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

33 Other operating income  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
 Interest on bank deposits  1 589 808 1 379 799
 Insurance commission  322 290 322 290
 Management fees receivable from subsidiary - - 5 435 3 000
 Rental Income-Nkoyoyo Guest House  - 90 - 90
 Interest on staff loans  315 432 315 431

 Other non-interest income  614 15 230 11

   2 840 1 635 7 681 4 621
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

34 Income from operation before income tax E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    

 Income from operations before income tax is arrived at after taking into 
 account the following items:      

       
 Auditors remuneration  925 867 778 484
 External audit  675 694 628 484
 Internal audit  250 173 150 104
       
 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and amortisation      
 Property, plant and equipment  513 643 369 472
 Amortisation of Intangible assets  247 136 247 136
 Leased assets under finance lease  136 179 123 162

   896 958 739 770
       
 Net impairment charges and other  credit risk      
 Loan impairment charges and other  credit risk  17 18 292 (4 512) 17 178
 Bad debts written off  17 383 1 285 15 945 26
 Bad debts recovered  (678) (760) (562) (758)

   16 722 18 817 10 871 16 446

 Director expenses  385 627 303 533

 Donations  90 118 90 106

 Legal fees  140 181 111 146

 Loss/(profit) on disposal on property, plant and equipment  32 56 32 55

 Repairs and maintenance  120 205 89 204

 Operating lease rentals  1 171 1 221 810 855

 Professional fees  817 381 380 254

 Employee compensation and benefits (note 35)  17 601 17 065 14 090 14 242

 Travelling and entertainment & International conferences  831 882 814 860
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

35 Employee compensation and benefits   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Salaries and wages  11 625 13 002 9 113 10 841
 Provident Fund Contributions  78 46 52 28
 Pension costs (defined contribution plan)  1 614 1 394 1 308 1 135
 Staff group life cover  89 72 71 57
 Staff training  1 141 1 721 1 089 1 612
 Medical aid contribution  1 440 830 1 047 569
 Leave, bonus & gratuity payment  1 614 - 1 410 -
   17 601 17 065 14 090 14 242
 The average number of persons employed by the Corporation 
 during the year was 36 (2011:37).  

36 Income tax expense    

 Tax debit (credit) to the income statements  5 545 1 186 3 155 613
     

 Swaziland normal     
   6 285 932 3 838 320
 Current year tax charge  3 008 932 561 320
 Prior year tax charge  3 277 - 3 277 -
 -Deferred tax (refer note 37)  (740) 254 (683) 293
   4 545 1 186 3 155 613
 Taxation rate reconciliation:    
 The income tax charge for the year can reconciled to the effective
 rate of taxation in Swaziland as follows:    
 Accounting profit  12 177 3 796 4 206 1 898
 
 Tax calculated at standard rate (30%)  3 653 1 139 1 262 569
     
   1 893 48 1 893 44
 Non deductable expenses  (1 353) - (1 353) -
 Tax on permanent differences)  235 (201) 235 (204)
 Deferred tax- under provided in prior year   (266) 248 (266) 248
 Prior year tax charge  3 277 - 3 277 -     
 Income tax expense  4 545 1 186 3 155 613

 
 The current year effective tax rate for the Company and the Group is 30%  and 30% respectively (effective tax rate for the company in 2011 was 30%)
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37 Deferred tax  
 
  Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporal differences under the liability method using a principal tax rate of 30% (2011:30%). Deferred tax arises from the 

following item:

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    

 The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:      
       
 At the beginning of the year  (6) 248 (44) 249
 Income statement charge (refer note 36)  740 (254) 683 (293) 
 Deferred tax asset/(liability) at year end  733 (6) 639 (44)

  
 GROUP
   
    Opening Charged to Closing
    balance Profit or loss balance
    E’000 E’000 E’000

 31 March 2012   
 Deferred tax liabilities:   
 Provisions   269 500 769
 Capitalised finance lease assets   (267) 267 -
 Prepayments   (8) (27) (35)
 

   (6) 740 733

 31 March 2011   
 Deferred tax liabilities:   
 Provisions   428 (159) 269
 Capitalised finance lease assets   (180) (87) (267)
 Prepayments   - (8) (8)

    248 (254) (6)
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 COMPANY

 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred 
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction) during 
the period is as follows:-

   
    Opening Charged to Closing
    balance Profit or loss balance
    E’000 E’000 E’000

 31 March 2012   
 Deferred tax liabilities:   
 Provisions   231 416 647
 Capitalised finance lease assets   (267) 267 -
 Prepayments   (8) - (8) 

   (44) 683 639

 31 March 2011   
 Deferred tax liabilities:   
 Provisions   428 (198) 231
 Capitalised finance lease assets   (180) (87) (267)
 Prepayments   - (8) (8)

    248 (293) (44)

          84
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38 Property, plant and equipment   

 GROUP
   
      Leased
  Computer Furniture Office Motor  motor Land &
  equipment & fittings equipment vehicles vehicles buildings Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Year ended 31 March 2012       

 Opening Balance 605 1 008 444 492 932 2 686 6 167
       
 Transfer of leased assets - - - 932 (932) - -  

 Additions 68 124 152 728 - 74 1 146
       
 Disposal at cost - - (42) (749) - - (791)
       
 Disposal accumulated depreciation - - 19 476 - - 495
 Depreciation  (220) (102) (54) (273) - - (649)
       
 Closing net book amount 453 1 030 519 1 606 - 2 760 6 368
       
 At 31 March 2012       
 Cost  1 283 1 547 762 3 143 - 2 760 9 495
 Accumulated depreciation (830) (517) (243) (1 537) - - (3 127) 
       
 Carrying amount at year end 453 1 030 519 1 606 - 2 760 6 368
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38 Property, plant and equipment   

 GROUP
   
      Leased
  Computer Furniture Office Motor  motor Land &
  equipment & fittings equipment vehicles vehicles buildings Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Year ended 31 March 2011       

 Opening Balance 681 810 386 766 1 111 - 3 754
       
 Additions 247 301 102 - - 2 686 3 336
       
 Disposal at cost (338) (24) (1) (233) - - (596)
      
 Disposal accumulated depreciation 310 10 1 174 - - 495
 Depreciation  (295) (89) (44) (215) (179) - (822)
       
 Closing net book amount 605 1 008 444 492 932 2 686 6 167

      
 At 31 March 2011       
 
 Cost  1 215 1 423 651 951 2 111 2 686 9 038 

Accumulated depreciation (610) (415) (207) (459) (1 179) - (2 871) 
       
 Carrying amount at year end 605 1 008 444 492 932 2 686 6 167
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38 Property, plant and equipment (continued)   

 COMPANY
   
      Leased
  Computer Furniture Office Motor  motor Land &
  equipment & fittings equipment vehicles vehicles buildings Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Year ended 31 March 2012 
 Opening Balance 513 767 322 222 847 2 686 5 357
 Transfer of leased assets - - - 847 (847) - -
 Additions 35 122 93 728 - 73 1 051
 Disposal at cost - - (41) (749) - - (790)
 Disposal accumulated depreciation - - 19 476 - - 495
 Transfer of assets to subsidiary at cost - - - - - - -
 Transferred assets accumulated depreciation - - - - - - -
 Depreciation  (182) (78) (40) (191) - - (491)

 Closing net book amount 366 811 353 1 333 - 2 759 5 622

      
 At 31 March 2011       
 
 Cost  1 112 1 275 569 2 681 - 2 759 8 396
 Accumulated depreciation (746) (464) (216) (1 348) - - (2 774)
 
 Carrying amount at year end 366 811 353 1 333 - 2 759 5 622
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38 Property, plant and equipment (continued)   

 COMPANY
   
      Leased
  Computer Furniture Office Motor  motor Land &
  equipment & fittings equipment vehicles vehicles buildings Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Year ended 31 March 2011 
 Opening Balance 681 810 386 766 1 111 - 3 754
 Additions 235 250 75 - - 2 686 3 246
 Disposal at cost (330) (24) (2) (233) - - (588)
 Disposal accumulated depreciation 303 11 1 173 - - 488
 Transfer of assets to subsidiary at cost (135) (220) (106) (389) (167) - (1 016)
 Transferred assets accumulated depreciation 10 4 - 28 65 - 107
 Depreciation  (251) (64) (32) (125) (162) - (634)

 Closing net book amount 513 767 322 220 847 2 686 5 357

 At 31 March 2011       
 
 Cost  1 077 1 153 517 590 2 010 2 686 8 033
 Accumulated depreciation (563) (386) (195) (369) (1 162) - (2 676)
 
 Carrying amount at year end 514 767 322 221 848 2 686 5 357
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39 Intangible Assets   

 COMPANY AND GROUP
        

 Computer Software Total
  E’000 E’000
 
 Year ended 31 March 2012  
 Opening Balance 751 751
 Additions 95 95
 Amortisation (247) (247)
  
 Closing net book amount 599 599
  
 At 31 March 2012  
 Cost  983 983
 Accumulated depreciation (384) (384)
  
 Carrying amount at year end 599 599

 Year ended 31 March 2011  
 Opening Balance - -
 Additions 887 887
 Amortisation (136) (136)
  
 Closing net book amount 751 751
  
 At 31 March 2011  
 Cost  887 887
 Accumulated depreciation (136) (136)
  
 Carrying amount at year end 751 751
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Sugar cane loans  81 766 62 806 81 766 62 806

 Agricultural loans  93 021 72 691 93 021 72 691

 Business and other loans  110 391 104 049 110 391 104 049

 Micro loans  672 399 672 399

 Kobwa loans  335 179 335 179

 Intercompany loan  - - 90 000 90 000

 Consumer  loans  217 385 145 917 - -

 Gross advances  503 570 386 041 376 185 330 124

      

 Less: Impairment   (22 794) (25 932) (18 265) (24 817)

  - sugar cane loans  (12 566) (9 337) (12 566) (9 337)

  - business, agriculture and other loans  (5 699) (15 480) (5 699) (15 480)

  - Consumer loans  (4 529) (1 115) - -

 Total loans and advances  480 776 360 109 357 920 305 307

40 Loans and advances
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40 Loans and advances (continued)  
 
 A maturity analysis of loans and advances is set out in note 40.1 below and is based on the remaining periods to contractual maturity from the year end.

 The maturity of loans and advance  is as follows:

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    

 Not later than 1 year  75 679 54 013 62 227 39 815
 Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years  70 993 42 826 42 875 23 094
 Later than 3 years  334 104 263 270 252 818 242 398

   480 776 360 109 357 920 305 307

 The nominal interest rates on receivables (current and non-current) were as follows: 
  
  Company and Group Company
  2012 2011
  % %
   
 Business and other loans 13.5% 13.5%
 Sugar cane loans 15.5% 15.5%
 Consumer loans 12.0% 12%

 The analysis of sugar cane loans is as follows:-
   
 Sugar cane loans 86 531  62 806
 Loans financed internally sourced funds (70 439) (46 519)

 Loans financed by African Development Bank Funds 16 092 16 287
 



�����������������������������������������

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2012

          92

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Sector analysis of loans and advance is as follows:     
Consumer loans  217 385 145 916 - -

 Dressmaking/tailoring & knitting  - 1 805 - 1 805
 Fruits and vegetables  8 911 7 019 8 911 7 019
 Grocery and retailing  3 155 9 315 3 155 9 315
 Handicraft  - 1 657 - 1 659
 Hawking  640 318 640 318
 Heavy Haulage  64 193 51 369 64 193 51 369
 Livestock  10 262 13 533 10 262 13 533
 Maize and other cereal  7 984 7 813 7 984 7 813
 Other Agricultural activities  13 957 10 774 13 957 10 774
 General business  82 574 60 598 82 574 60 597
 Poultry  - 1 638 - 1 638
 Sugar cane farming  81 790 64 686 81 790 64 686
 Transport services  12 719 9 600 12 719 9 600
 Intercompany loan  - - 90 000 90 000
   503 570 386 041 376 185 330 126

 Impairment of loans and advances  (22 794) (25 932) (18 265) (24 817)
   480 776 360 109 357 920 305 309

 The fair values of  loans and advances are as follows:

 GROUP AND COMPANY

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Sugar cane loans  69 200 53 470 69 200 53 470
 Business and other loans  198 720 161 837 198 720 161 837
 Consumer loans  212 856 144 802 - -
 Loan to related company  - - 90 000 90 000
   480 776 360 109 357 920 305 307

40 Loans and advances (continued)
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40 Loans and advances (continued)  
 
  The above values of loans and advances approximate fair value. There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to loans and advances, as the Corporation has a large 

number of clients that are industry dispersed. The Corporation’s historical experience in collection of loans and advances falls within the recorded allowances.  Due to 
these factors, management believes that no additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Corporations’ loans and advances. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loans and advances mentioned above. The Corporation does hold collateral 
as security on some loans and advance.

 Loans and advances that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired. As of 31 March 2012, loans and advances of E 103 800 548 (2011: E73 711 165) 
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent clients for whom there is no recent history of default.

 The ageing analysis of these loans and advances that are past due but not impaired  is as follows:   

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    
 Up to 3 months  31 050 20 931 31 050 20 931
 Over 3 months  72 750 52 780 72 750 52 780 

     103 800 73 711  103 800 73 711 

  As of 31 March 2012, loans and advances of E18 265 096 (2011: E24 817 090) were impaired and provided for. The amount of the provision was E18 265 096 (2011:  
E 24 817 090). The individually impaired loans and advances were mainly relating to sugar cane farmers and business and other agricultural loans, which are in 
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

 GROUP AND COMPANY

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Up to 3 months  5 222 19 795 4 311 19 692
 Over 3 months  15 929 6 137 13 954 5 125

   21 151 25 932 18 265 24 817
     
 The carrying amounts of the Corporation’s loans and advances are 
 denominated in the following currencies:    
     
 Emalangeni (SZL)  480 776 360 109 357 920 305 307
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Analysis of movement in impairment of advances    
 At 31 March 2012    
    
 Opening balance  25 932 18 552 24 817 18 552    
 Net new impairments created/reversed (Note 41) 17 7 957 (4 512) 6 842    
 Provision utilised during the year  (3 155) (577) (2 040) (577)

 At 31 March 2012  22 794 25 932 18 265 24 817

 The creation and release of provision for impaired loans and advances have been included as a separate line in the income statement. Amounts charged to the 
allowance account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The other classes within trade and other receivables do not 
contain impaired assets.

 GROUP AND COMPANY

40.3 The analysis of carrying amount and impairment of sugar cane loans rescheduled as at 31 March 2012 is as follows:

   Gross   Average
  carrying  Net carrying period of
  amount Impairment amount rescheduling
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Sugar cane loans rescheduled  6 993 (371) 6 622 6 years

 GROUP AND COMPANY
 The analysis of carrying amount and impairment of sugar cane loans rescheduled as at 31 March 2011 is as follows:

   Gross   Average
  carrying  Net carrying period of
  amount Impairment amount rescheduling
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Sugar cane loans rescheduled  19 801 (3 876) 15 925 3 years

40 Loans and advances (continued)
40.1 Impairment of advances
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    

41 Impairment of loans and advances    
     
 Bad debts write-off  17 384 11 620 15 945 10 361
 Provision raised/(reversed) in the current year 17 7 957 (4 512) 6 842
 Bad debts recovered  (678) (760) (562) (758)

   16 723 18 817 10 871 16 445

42 Financial investment    
     
 Swaziland Building Society permanent shares 1 522 1 523 1 522 1 523

 The investment has been pledged as security in respect of staff housing loans with 
Swaziland Building Society (refer note 53). 
 

 The carrying amount of the investments approximates fair value. The shares will be 
redeemed at nominal value.  
  

     
43 Other assets and accrued interest    
     
 Accrued interest   16 656 13 771 14 308 12 219
 Less: Interest in suspense  - (56) - (56)

   16 656 13 715 14 308 12 163
     
 Property in possession  5 000 5 000 5 000 5 000
 Interest receivable from related company - - 2 151 21 000
 Other receivables from related company - - - 6 893
 Credit life cover receivable from customers 395 845 395 845
 Customer deposits  3 355 3 078 2 978 2 879
 Staff loans  5 912 5 357 5 912 5 357
 Prepayments  72 27 27 26

        Other receivables  24 (5) 24

   31 390 28 046 30 766 54 187
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

44 Cash and cash equivalents    
     
 Cash in hand  68 162  65 151
 Cash at bank  20 880 60 418 19 187 60 391

   20 948 60 580 19 252 60 542

 For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent comprise 
 the following:     
 Cash and bank balance  20 948 60 580 19 252 60 542
 Bank overdraft (Note 44.1)  - (20 059) - (15 921) 
 Cash and cash equivalents  20 948 40 521 19 252 44 621

44.1 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)  

 First National Bank of Swaziland Limited     
 The Corporation has an overdraft facility with First National Bank of Swaziland Limited of E3 000 000 to be utilised for working capital requirements..

 The facility is on a fluctuating basis and secured by a negative pledge of assets. Interest rate is charged at prime overdraft rate and payable monthly in arrears. 

 The facilities are expiring within one year after date of commencement and are subject to annual review at various dates. The current facility is due for review on 30 
September 2012.

 Standard Bank Swaziland Limited     
 During the current year Corporation decreased its level of bank overdraft to an overdraft facility amounting to E3 000 000 (2011: E20 000 000) with the Standard Bank 

of Swaziland Limited to finance working capital requirements.  The overdraft facility is secured by cession of the Corporation’s rights in and to all book debts, other 
debts and claims due and to become due to it as well as unlimited surety ship by the First Finance Company for all obligations and indebtedness of the Corporation to 
the bank. The facility is repayable on demand with interest is charged at prime rate prevailing from time to time per annum, plus 1%.



�����������������������������������������

        97

45 Investment in subsidiaries   
 On 1 April 2010 the company acquired shares at 100% in First Finance Company (Pty) Ltd, a company incorporated for administration of the consumer loans portfolio 

of the company. There was no goodwill which arose due to the acquisition of the wholly owned subsidiary as the consideration made for the investment was equal to 
the net assets value of the company’s assets.

 The acquisition- date values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed  are as follows:

  E’000
 
 Loans and advances 100 527 
 Motor vehicles  324 
 Leased motor vehicles 156 
 Office Furniture  106 
 Computer Equipment  130 
 Office fittings  193 
 long term borrowings (90 000) 
 Total Net asset value 11 436 
 Non-controlling interest (Fair value) - 
 Total consideration transferred 11 436 
 Consideration discharged  other than transferring cash (11 436) 
 Consideration discharged in cash - 
 Cash and cash equivalents acquired - 
 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents -

 

45.1 The consideration transferred relates to the total assets net of the borrowings, as First Finance company is required to repay back the E 90 million as a loan was granted 
to First Finance at acquisition.

45.2 Loans and advances acquired in the business combination have been recognised at their Fair value of E100 627 954 which was equal to the gross contractual amounts 
receivable at the acquisition date and there was no amounts expected to be not collectible.

  2012 2011
  E’000 E’000

46 Share capital     
 The share capital of the Corporation consists of the following:     
 Authorised  
       1 000 ordinary shares at E1 each 1 1

 Issued  
      100 ordinary shares of E 1 each * - -

 * - amounts are less than E1,000     
 Premium on issue of shares 134 225 134 225
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46 Share capital (continued)  

 In 2011, the Swaziland Government being the major shareholder of the company made a capital contribution in the company for E50 Million. The shareholders  
intend based on the capital contribution to appropriate the corporations shareholding as follows for Swaziland Government and Tibiyo Takangwane respectively, 70% 
to 80% and 30% to 20% The E50 million contribution has been taken directly to equity increasing the share premium to E134 224 969.

47 General risk reserve       
 The general risk reserve arises from the disclosure requirement as per the Corporation’s policy regarding the treatment of general provisions. General provisions are 

accounted for through the statement of changes in equity in the general risk reserve. General provisions which are calculated at 2% for the company and at 0.5% for 
the Subsidiary, of the net loans after specific provisions totalling E357 919 925 (2011: E 305 306 929) for the company and E 212 856 182 for the subsidiary.

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
     
 Opening balance  6 830 5 799 6 106 5 799
 General provisions raised during the period 1 393 1 031 1 052 307

 Closing balance  8 223 6 830 7 158 6 106

     
48 Borrowings         
 Long term loans (Note 48.2)  269 086 180 443 169 086 170 443
 Other short term borrowings (Note 48.3) 40 989 39 089 40 989 39 089

 Total borrowings  310 075 219 532  210 075 209 532
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48 Borrowings (continued)  
 
48.1 Long term loans

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    
 The analysis of long term loans is as follows:    
 Swaziland Government  10 000 10 000 10 000 10 000
 Swaziland Government - ADB  61 003 53 803 61 003 53 803
 OPEC Fund  1 908 5 546 1 908 5 546
 Swaziland National Provident Fund  10 382 10 590 10 382 10 590
 Norsad  23 673 26 474 23 673 26 475
 Kobwa loan fund  1 208 1 030 1 208 1 030
 IDC Loan  24 384 43 000 24 384 43 000
 PEU Loan  20 000 20 000 20 000 20 000
 Interneuron Loan  100 000 10 000 - -
 Standard Bank Loan  16 528 - 16 528 -

 Total long term loans  269 086 180 443 169 086 170 444

48.1.1 Swaziland Government 
 The loan with the Swaziland Government (E 10 million), received 11 February 2003, is for a 10 year period at 8% interest per annum payable semi annually on  

30 June and 31 December.  The capital amount is payable in two instalments of E5m on 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2013. Furthermore, an additional loan amounting to  
E20 Million was obtained from the Central Bank of Swaziland through the Swaziland Government on 06 March 2006. The Corporation is to lend the money  
to deserving and potential and existing entrepreneurs. Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 6.5% per annum and paid half yearly whilst the capital shall be  
repaid in five annual instalments of E 4 Million from 6 March 2008.
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48 Borrowings (continued)

48.1.2 Swaziland Government – ADB
 
 The African Development Bank (ADB) in terms of which the bank advanced E150 million to the Government for the purposes of financing agricultural activities on 

the Komati Downstream Development Project. For this purpose, the Swaziland Government advanced E75 million to Swaziland Development Finance Corporation 
Limited.  The amount has been advanced to the Corporation in five tranches of E12,500,000, E12,500,000, E19,230,000, E10 823 355 and E 7 200 000 at 10.5% per annum.  
The principal and interest payments shall commence 2 years after date of disbursement, with the first payment made on 31 December 2006. The loan shall be repaid over 
a period of 10 years and the last payment due on 31 December 2019.

48.1.3 OPEC Fund
 
 The OPEC is a line of credit amounting to US $ 3 Million to Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited. Interest accrues from day to day and is pro rated on the 

basis of 360 days at a floating rate of LIBOR plus 2% margin. Repayment of the capital shall be made on the second anniversary of the first disbursement (07/11/2007) to  
7 November 2012. As at 31 March 2010 US $ 1 363 638 was payable to OPEC Fund. 

48.1.4 Swaziland National Provident Fund
 
 The Swaziland National Provident Fund (SNPF) loan agreement in terms of which will lend Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited E 15 million. Interest 

is calculated at prime minus one percent (prime-1%) per annum on the outstanding balance and is chargeable bi-annually on the anniversary date of the median dates of 
the draw downs. The repayments shall be made in 10 annual instalments of E 1.5 million with the first instalment date after the expiry of the first anniversary date of the 
median date of draw downs.  The first drawn down was for E 5 million obtained on 22 April 2006 and the last drawn down amount was for E 10 million obtained on 13 
January 2008.

48.1.5 Norsad
 
 The Norsad Agency loan agreement in terms of which will lend and advance E 30 million to Swaziland Development Finance Corporation. Interest is at variable interest 

rate of prime per annum calculated on the outstanding balance on the basis of a 360-day year composed of 12 months of 30 days each. The repayments shall be made in 
7 years inclusive of one (1) grace period. Amounts due as a percentage of totals disbursed shall be 4.17% and interest payable quarterly in March, June, September and 
December. The first drawn down was for E 15 million obtained on 07 December 2006 and the last drawn down amount was for E 15 million obtained on 01 April 2007.
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48 Borrowings (continued)

48.1.6 Kobwa loan fund
  
 The Kobwa revolving fund is aimed at assisting residents of the communities that were displaced by Maguga and Driekopis dams. A large number of budding 

entrepreneurs are increasingly becoming aware of the opportunities presented by the revolving fund. The Corporation only helps in the administration of the loan 
fund and charges only a management fee on the management services provided to the Fund.

48.1.7 IDC loan 
 The IDC loan is repayable over a period of 5 years. Interest payment at South African prime plus 2% (currently 12%) commenced on 01 June2010 and is payable 

monthly, whereas the payment of the principal shall commence 6 months after first disbursement with 6 months grace period, i.e on 31 June 2010.

48.1.8 Public Enterprise Unit
 
 Interest on the E20 Million Public Enterprise Unit loan is payable at a fixed rate of 6.5% and paid half yearly whilst the capital shall be repaid in five annual instalments of 

E 4 Million from 22 June 2012.

48.1.9 Standard Bank Loan
 
 The Standard Bank loan is for E 17 million and repayable over a period of 36 months commencing from March 2012, interest is charged at prime plus 2% (currently 10%) 

and is payable monthly.
 
48.1.10 INTERNEURON

 The loan with Interneuron amounting to E 100 million was granted 09 December 2011, in three tranches of E 36 million, E 37 million & E 27 million; with interest 
at 12% with a facility fee of 8% (first tranche of E 36 million), prime plus 2.5% interest per annum for the two tranches. The repayment date shall be the earlier of;  
31 March 2012; or the date on which negotiations regarding the issue of a share holding for the lender (or its nominees) in the borrower are terminated due to the failure 
of such negotiations or the date on which the parties agree to regard loan as part of funding obligations of the lender top obtain the share holding in the borrower, 
and in the case the agreement is replaced by a signed Shareholders’ agreement. The Loan may be converted to equity on agreement by both parties. At 31 March 2012 
management’s intention was to hold this loan as a repayable debt and they had no intention to convert to equity and as such the loan has been treated as debt.
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48 Borrowings (continued) 

48.2 The maturity of the long term borrowing is as follows:  

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
     
 Within 1 year  145 491 25 000 45 401 25 000
 Between 1 and 2 years  77 686  6 678 77 686 6 678
 Between 2 and 5 years  33 578 66 816 33 578 66 816
 Over 5 year  12 331 81 949 12 421 71 949

 Total long term borrowings  269 086 180 443 169 086 170 443

 Long term loans- minimum payments    
     
 Not later than 1 year  210 900 61 088 96 360 61 088
 Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 90 399 47 508 90 399 47 508
 Later than 2 year and not later than 5 years 
   41 900 96 788 41 900 96 788
 Later than 5 years  14 607 50 884 14 607 40 884

   357 806 256 268 243 266 246 268

 Future finance charges on loans  (88 720) (75 826) (74 180) (75 825)

   269 086 180 442 169 086 170 443
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48.2 Borrowings (continued)   
 
 The carrying amounts and fair value of the long term loans are as follow:

 Group Company
 Carrying Carrying Fair
 Amount Amount Values
 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Swaziland Government 10 000 10 000 16 769
 Swaziland Government – ADB 61 003  61 003 90 982
 OPEC Fund 1 908 1 908 2 112
 Swaziland National Provident Fund 10 382 10 382 10 587
 Norsad Agency 23 673 23 673 23 857
 IDC 24 384 24 384 24 474
 PEU-Public Enterprise Unit 20 000 20 000 20 964
 Kobwa  1 208 1 208 1 028
 Interneuron 100 000 - 102 065
 Standard Bank Loam 16 528 16 528 16 509

  269 086 169 086 309 347

   2012 2011
48.3 Other short term loans  E’000 E’000
 African Alliance Swaziland (Note 48.3.1)  40 989 39 089

   40 989 39 089

48.3.1 African Alliance
 African alliance has  loan agreements in terms of which will lend the following loans were given :

 40 Million loan
 The corporation received the following loans, in three tranches one of E14M received on the 27th of October 2010, E4.7 million in 1 November 2010 and E21.9M on 

27 October 2011, the loans are subject to the following interest rates:  9.5%, Prime plus 2%, Prime less 1% and 9% fixed respectively. The loans are payable in monthly 
instalments of E1 Million. The pre-conditions of the loan is that the Corporation maintains a E9M account with African Alliance and Pay monthly deposit of E1M to 
the same account. The Corporation will not transact on the account until the loan matures and has been settled. The E4.7 million loan  is subject to the condition that at 
maturity E5 will be payable, therefore this loan was discounted to  its present value of  E4.7 million which was actually received by the Corporation .Interest on this loan 
will be calculated at 182 days based on the  ruling rate at last reset date  until 28 Oct 2013.
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  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
     
49 Trade and other payables   

 Trade payables  8 812 9 336 3 671 7 641
 Accruals  2 624 1 626 2 624 1 626
 Accrued interest   34 105 26 194 34 080 25 978
 Guarantee accounts held for Subsidiary (783) 892 (783) 892

   44 758 38 048 39 592 36 137
  
50 Income tax liability         
 Opening balance  3 268 9 361 2 657 9 361
 Taxation paid during the year  (6 780) (7 025) (5 864) (7 025)
 Current year tax (refer note 36)  3 008 932 560 321
 Disallowable tax deductions from prior year 3 277 - 3 277 -

 Closing balance  2 773 3 268 630 2 657

51 Provisions

 GROUP   
  Performance  
  bonus and gratuity Leave pay Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000
 31 March 2012   
 At 1 April 2011 - 896 896
 Additional provision 1 613 648 2 261
 Utilised during the year - (634) (634)

 At year-end 1 613 910 2 523
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51 Provisions (continued)

 GROUP

  Performance  
  bonus and gratuity Leave pay Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000
 
 31 March 2011   
 At 1 April 2010 910 517 1 427
 Additional provision - 379 379
 Utilised during the year (910) - (910)

 At year-end - 896 896

 Analysis of total provisions:  2012 2011
   E’000 E’000
 Current  2 523 896

 COMPANY

  Performance  
  bonus and gratuity Leave pay Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000
 31 March 2012   
 At 1 April 2011 - 769 769
 Additional provision 1 408 614 2 022
 Utilised during the year - (634) (634)

 At year-end 1 408 749 2 157

 31 March 2011   
 At 1 April 2010 910 518 1 428
 Additional provision  251 251
 Utilised during the year (910) - (910)

 At year-end - 769 769

 Analysis of total provisions:  2012 2011
   E E    
 Current  2 157 768
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51 Provisions (continued)   

 Leave pay provision

 The leave pay provision related to vested leave pay to which employees are entitled.  The provision arises as employees render services that increase their entitlement 
to future compensated leave.  The provision is utilised when employees, who are entitled to leave pay, leave the employment of the Corporation or when accrued 
entitlement is utilised.

 This provision in respect of staff and employees calculated on the number of days that the employees have not taken in respect of their leave entitlement. The anticipated 
utilisation of the amount provided is in the near future. 

 Performance bonus     
 Provision is made for payments in accordance with a bonus plan for the year ended 31 March 2011.  The bonus provision consists of a performance based bonus, which 

is determined by reference to the overall Corporation performance with regard to a set of pre-determined key performance area.  The cash flow is expected to occur in 
2011/2012 financial year when the results have been approved.

52 Derivative financial instruments  
   
 COMPANY AND GROUP  
   
 Fair values of derivatives by product contract type held by the Company and the group is as follows:-  

   Financial assets Financial liabilities
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Cross currency swaps:-     
 Forward foreign exchange swap currency- fair value hedge 126 334 - - 

 Interest rate swaps – fair value hedges  105 - - 470

   231 334 - 470

 Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining 
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability, if the maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. The ineffective portion 
recognised in the profit or loss that arises from fair value hedges amounts to a gain of E575 185 (2011: loss E962 876). 

 The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 March 2012 is E 2 089 419 (2011: E 5 546 469).
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52 Derivative financial instruments (continued)   

 Interest rate swaps
 Effective 31 December 2007, the fixed interest rate is 10.6% and the main floating rates are LIBOR plus 2%. Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in statement 

of changes in equity on interest rate swap contracts as of 31 March 2012 will be continuously released to the statement of comprehensive income until the repayment of 
the borrowings

 The Corporation entered into a cross currency swap arrangement with Rand Merchant Bank (RMB) to hedge against foreign exchange risk on its foreign currency based 
commitment with the OPEC Fund for International Development.

 The Corporation transacts derivatives for the primary purpose of managing and hedging its own risk. Cross currency swap agreement was entered into to manage 
exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate on the based commitment with the OPEC Fund for International Development. The Corporation’s credit risk 
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if counter parties fail to perform their obligation.

53 Contingencies     
 Contingent liabilities  
 At 31 March 2012 the Corporation had contingent liabilities in respect of a bank guarantee arising out in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that 

no material liabilities will arise as the liability will not crystallise. In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation has given guarantees amounting to E1 521 900 (2011: 
E 1 522 500) to Swaziland Building Society in respect of staff housing loans.

54 Commitments       
 Capital Commitments   
 Loan amounts contracted and approved for at the statement of financial position date but not recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
    

 Loan amounts approved but not disbursed  29 753 44 459 24 458  44 459

 Current and future cash resources will fund the above loan amounts.
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54 Commitments (continued)
   
 Operating lease commitments –where the Corporation is the lessee.

 The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
     

 Not later than 1 year  1 110 1 078 785 785
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1 441 2 247 791 1 181 
   2 551 3 325 1 576 1 966

 The Corporation entered into an operating lease agreement with Swaziland National Provident Fund Properties. Operating lease current year rentals amounts to  
E 40 147 per month with an annual fixed escalation rate of 6%.

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000     
55 Cash utilised by operations         
 Cash flows from operating activities:    
 Profit for the period before taxation 12 178 3 796 4 206 1 898
 Adjustment for non-cash items:    
 Bad debts 17 383 10 361 15 945 10 361
 Impairment of loans and advances 9 041  7 957 4 511 6 842 
 Depreciation 649 822 491 634
 Amortisation of intangible assets 247 136 247 136
 Net trading (income)/expense (Note 32) 209 (806) 209 (806)
 Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets (32) 56 (32) 55

 Operating profit before working capital changes 39 739 22 322 25 641 19 120      
 Increase/(Decrease) in working capital (142 097) (76 737) (44 806) (59 525)
 Increase in loans and advances (147 091) (81 600) (73 069) (36 211)
 (Increase) in other current assets 22 399 (35 571) 23 420 (33 819)
 Increase in current liabilities (19 032) 40 966 3 454 11 164
 Increase in provisions 1 627 (531) 1 389 (659)
 
 Net cash outflows from operating activities (102 358) (54 415) (19 165) (40 405)
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56 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis   

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost. Note 2 describe how the classes of financial instruments 
are measured, and how income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial 
assets and liabilities by category as defined in IAS 39 and by the statement of financial position heading.

 GROUP
  
    Financial Derivatives
    assets and designated 
   Available for- liabilities at as fair value
  Loans and sale amortised hedging 
  receivables securities cost instruments Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 As at 31 March 2012     

 Financial assets     
 Loans and advances 480 776 - - - 480 776
 Financial investment 1 522 - - - 1 522
 Other asset 31 390 - - - 31 390
 Cash and cash equivalent 20 948 - - - 20 948 

 Derivative financial instruments - - - 231 231

  534 636 - - 231 534 867

     
 Financial liabilities      
 Bank overdraft - - - - -
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Long term liabilities - 310 075 - - 310 075
 Other short term liabilities - 2 523 - - 2 523
 Trade  and other payables - 45 997 - - 45 997
 Derivative financial instruments - - - - -

  - 358 595 - - 358 595
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56 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis (continued)   

  
  
 GROUP (continued)   Financial Derivatives
    assets and designated 
   Available for- liabilities at as fair value
  Loans and sale amortised hedging 
  receivables securities cost instruments Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 As at 31 March 2011     

 Financial assets     
 Loans and advances 360 109 - - - 360 109
 Financial investment 1 523  - - 1 523
 Other asset 28 046 - - - 28 046
 Cash and cash equivalent 60 580 - - - 60 580
 Derivative financial instruments - - - 334 334

  450 258 - - 334 450 592

     
 Financial liabilities      
 Bank overdraft - 20 059 - - 20 059
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Long term liabilities - 219 532 - - 219 532
 Other short term liabilities - 896 - - 896
 Trade  and other payables - 38 047 - - 38 047
 Derivative financial instruments - - - 470 470

  - 278 534 - 470 279 004

 

          110



�����������������������������������������

        111

56 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis (continued)   

  
 COMPANY   Financial Derivatives
    assets and designated 
   Available for- liabilities at as fair value
  Loans and sale amortised hedging 
  receivables securities cost instruments Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 As at 31 March 2012     

 Financial assets     
 Loans and advances 357 920 - - - 357 920
 Financial investment 1 522 - - - 1 522
 Other asset 30 767 - - - 30 767
 Cash and cash equivalent 19 248 - - - 19 248
 Derivative financial instruments - - - 231 231 

  409 457 - - 231 409 688

 COMPANY   Financial Derivatives
    assets and designated 
   Available for- liabilities at as fair value
  Loans and sale amortised hedging 
  receivables securities cost instruments Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000
     
 Financial liabilities      
 Bank overdraft - - - - -
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Long term liabilities - 2 10 075 - - 210 075
 Other short term liabilities - 2 157 - - 2 157
 Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
 Trade  and other payables - 40 829 - - 40 829

  - 253 061 - - 253 061
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56 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis (continued)   

  
  
 COMPANY (continued)   Financial Derivatives
    assets and designated 
   Available for- liabilities at as fair value
  Loans and sale amortised hedging 
  receivables securities cost instruments Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 As at 31 March 2011     

 Financial assets     
 Loans and advances 305 307 - - - 305 307
 Financial investment - 1 523 - - 1 523
 Other asset 54 188 - - - 54 188
 Cash and cash equivalent - 60 542 - - 60 542
 Derivative financial instruments - - - 334 334

  359 495 62 065 - 334  421 894

     
 Financial liabilities      
 Bank overdraft - 15 921 - - 15 921
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Long term liabilities - 209 532 - - 209 532
 Other short term liabilities - 769 - - 769
 Derivative financial instruments - - - 470 470
 Trade  and other payables - 36 137 - - 36 137

  - 262 359 - 470 262 829
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57 Credit quality of financial assets 

 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the credit rating about the counterparty
    
 GROUP      Derivatives
       designated 
     Cash and  as fair value
  Loans and   cash Financial hedging 
  Advance Other assets equivalents instruments instruments Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 As at 31 March 2012     

 Counterparties without external credit ratings      
 - Low Risk  276 383 31 390 20 948 1 522 231 330 474
 - General Credit risk 177 942 - - - - 177 942
 - High risk 26 451 - - - - 26 451

  480 776 31 390 20 948 1 522 231 534 867

 As at 31 March 2011      
 Counterparties without external credit ratings      
 - Low Risk  241 277 28 046 60 580 1 523 334 331 760
 - General Credit risk 69 713 - - - - 69 713
 - High risk 49 119 - - - - 49 119

  360 109 28 046 60 580 1 523 334 450 592

 COMPANY      Derivatives
       designated 
     Cash and  as fair value
  Loans and   cash Financial hedging 
  Advance Other assets equivalents instruments instruments Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 
 As at 31 March 2012      
 Counterparties without external credit ratings      
 - Low Risk  153 527 30 766 19 252 1 522 231 205 298
 - General Credit risk 177 942 - - - - 177 942
 - High risk 26 451 - - - - 26 451

  357 920 30 766 19 252 1 522 231 409 781
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57 Credit quality of financial assets 

 As at 31 March 2011      
 Counterparties without external credit ratings     

 
 - Low Risk  96 475 54 188 60 542 1 523 334 213 061
 - General Credit risk 69 713 - - - - 69 713
 - High risk 139 119 - - - - 139 119

  305 307 54 188 60 542 1 523 334 421 893

 The grouping of loans and advances is based on the following: 

 Low risk- This category is utilised for the performing loans that are classified as current and 2 months due, and mainly comprise of consumer loans and business loans.
 General credit risk- This category is for all clients’ accounts that are 60-91 days due, where a moderate credit risk is taken. Included in the category are Agricultural loans.
 High Risk- this category is for all high risk clients and comprises all clients immediately they are over 91 days due. 

58 Financial instruments – maturity     
 The Corporation’s financial instruments are made up of the following financial assets and liabilities by maturity:

 GROUP 
   Between 1 Between 2
  Less than and and Over
  1 year  2 years 5 years 5 years  Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 As at 31 March 2012     

 Financial assets:     
 Other assets 31 390 - - - 31 390
 Financial investment 1 522 - - - 1 522
 Loans and advances 75 679 70 993 334 104 - 480 776
 Cash and bank 20 948 - - - 20 948
 Derivative financial instruments 231 - - - 231

  233 671 70 993 334 104 - 534 867
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58 Financial instruments – maturity (continued) 

    
 GROUP (continued)      
  Between 1 Between 2
  Less than and and Over
  1 year  2 years 5 years 5 years  Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Financial Liabilities:     
 Trade and other payables 44 758 - - - 44 758
 Bank overdraft - - - - -
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Other short-term liabilities 2 523 - - - 2 523
 Long term liabilities 186 390 77 686 33 578 12 421 310 075
 Derivative financial instruments - - - - -

  235 941 77 686 33 578 12 421 357 356

 31 March 2011     
 Financial Assets:     
 Other assets 28 046 - - - 28 046
 Financial investment 1 523 - - - 1 523
 Loans and advances 54 613 42 826 180 885 82 385 360 709
 Cash and bank 60 580 - - - 60 580
 Derivative financial instruments - -  334 334

  144 762 42 826 180 885 82 719 451 192

 Financial Liabilities:     
 Trade and other payables 38 047 - - - 38 047
 Bank overdraft 20 059 - - - 20 059
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Other short-term liabilities 896 - - - 896
 Long term liabilities 25 000 6 678 105 904 81 949 219 532
 Derivative financial instruments -   470 470

  84 002 6 678 105 904 82 419 279 004
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58 Financial instruments – maturity (continued)  

 COMPANY   Between 1 Between 2
  Less than and and Over
  1 year  2 years 5 years 5 years  Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 31 March 2012     
 Financial Assets:     
 Other assets 30 766 - - - 30 766
 Financial investment 1 522 - - - 1 522
 Loans and advances 62 227 42 875 252 818 - 357 920
 Cash and bank 19 252 - - - 19 252
 Derivative financial instruments 231 - - - 231

  113 998 42 875 252 818 - 409 691

 Financial Liabilities:     
 Trade and other payables 39 592 - - - 39 592
 Bank overdraft - - - - -
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Other short-term liabilities 2 157 - - - 2 157
 Long term liabilities 86 390 77 686 33 578 12 421 210 075
 Derivative financial instruments - - - - -

  128 139 77 686 33 578 12 420 254 824
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58 Financial instruments – maturity (continued) 

    
 COMPANY (continued)      
  Between 1 Between 2
  Less than and and Over
  1 year  2 years 5 years 5 years  Total
  E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 31 March 2011
 Financial Assets:     
 Other assets 54 188 - - - 54 188
 Financial investment 1 523 - - - 1 523
 Loans and advances 38 172 22 141 71 264 173 730 305 307
 Cash and bank 60 542 - - - 60 542
 Derivative financial instruments    334 334

  154 425 22 141 71 264 174 064 421 894
 Financial Liabilities:     
 Trade and other payables 36 137 - - - 36 137
 Bank overdraft 15 921 - - - 15 921
 Finance lease liabilities - - - - -
 Other short-term liabilities 769 - - - 769
 Long term liabilities 25 000 6 678 105 904 71 949 209 532
 Derivative financial instruments - - - 470 470

  77 827 6 678 105 904 72 419 262 829

  Group Company
   2012 2011 2012 2011

    E’000 E’000 E’000 E’000

 Loans and advance 33 074 10 590 12 533 10 590
 Cash and cash equivalents 12 000 13 000 3 000 3 000
 Financial instrument 1 500 1 523 1 500 1 523

  46 574 25 113 17 033 15 113

 These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard securities lending and repurchase agreements.
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60 Litigation    
 The Corporation is party to a number of legal actions arising out of its normal business operations in which it has taken some of its clients for non-performing of loans and 

advances to court. In the on-going legal actions, there are no litigations that are against the Corporation.

 Management considers that none of the actions is material, and none is expected to result in a significant favourable effect on the financial position of the Corporation, 
either individually or in the aggregate. 

 Management believes that adequate provisions have been made in respect of such litigation. The Corporation has not disclosed any contingent liability or asset associated 
with these legal actions because it is not practicable to do so.

61 Related party transactions     
 The Corporation is controlled by the Swaziland Government, which own 80% of the Corporation shares. The remaining 20% of the shares are held by Tibiyo Taka Ngwane, 

in trust for the Swazi Nation. On the one hand the corporation is a 100% shareholder of First Finance Company (Pty) Ltd.

 The following transactions were carried out with related parties.

 COMPANY  
   
   2012 2011
   E’000 E’000

i) Loan from related parties: E’000 E’000
 Movement:  
 At 1 April 63 803 75 893
 Loans advanced during the year 7 200 -
 Loan repayments received - (12 000)

 Balance at year end  71 003 63 893

 Amounts due to  related party:  
 Swaziland Government – ADB 61 003 53 803
 Swaziland Government 10 000 10 000

   71 003 63 893

 The provision of funds to the Corporation by the Government of Swaziland is based on long term agreement that enable Swaziland Development Finance Corporation 
Limited to obtain financing below the normal market interest rate (prime lending rate). The Swaziland Government offer financing with interest rate ranging between 
6.5% and 8%, which is below the prime lending rate of 9%. Funding obtained from Tibiyo Taka Ngwane by the Corporation was at prime lending rate.
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61 Related party transactions (continued)   

        2012 2011
         E’000 E’000

i) Loan from related parties:
 Balance at beginning of the year       46 67
 Disbursed during the year       159 102
 Interest accrued during the year       8 7
 Loan repayments during the year       (85) (130)

 Balance at the end of the Period       128 46

 The Acting Managing Director has two loans with the company. One of the loans is for E200 000. It was granted in May 2009 at prime plus 4.5% interest. The other 
one is for E50,000.00 granted in February 2011 at staff rates.

61.1 Balances and transaction with related company  
   
 Loan to related party  -
   
 Loan due from related company       90 000 90 000

 Amounts due from related party  
   
 Intercompany account-amount due from related company      - 6 893

 Management fees  
   
 Management fee due from related company      2 150 3 000

 Interest Income  
 Interest receivable from related company      - 18 000
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61 Related party transactions (continued)     
 The corporation advanced E90 000 000 to its subsidiary at a 20% interest per annum. The loan is repayable over 20 years by the subsidiary with a grace period of 5 years.

(iii) Doubtful debts
 There is no provision for doubtful debts, nor any bad debt written off during the year, that relates to related parties.

   2012 2011
   E’000 E’000

62 Financial guarantees   
  National Maize Corporation 62.1 273 273
  Swaziland Dairy Board 62.2 531 531
  Voluntary Deferred Pay Guarantee Fund 62.3 1 250 2 777
  Komati Basin Water Authority 62.4 682 749
  Shewula Account 62.5 31 31
  Customer Deposit Account 62.6 - -

  Balance at the end of the Period  2 767 4 361

62.1 National Maize Corporation (NMC) Guarantee
  Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed to administer loans to local maize farmers.  NMC will pay 8% of the total amount loaned by the 

Corporation as management fee at the end of each season.  NMC has agreed to provide up to E2 million as guarantee against these loans.  The funds are kept in a separate 
bank account called NMC Credit Guarantee Fund with interest accruing to the NMC Fund. On these loans E0 was outstanding as at 31 March 2012.

62.2 Swaziland Dairy Board (SDB)
  Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed to administer loans to smallholder dairy farmers. SDB will pay 10% of the total amount loaned by the 

Corporation as management fee at the end of each season. SDB has agreed to provide up to E1.5 million as guarantee against these loans. The funds are kept in a separate 
bank account called SDB Credit Guarantee Fund with interest accruing to the SDB fund. Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited acts as signatories to this 
account. On these loans E 32 716.91 was outstanding as at 31 March 2012.

62.3 Voluntary Deferred Pay Special Fund (VDPSF)
  In terms of a 5 year contract with VDPSF, Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed to administer loans to qualifying ex-miners in order to 

enable them to engage in meaningful income generating activities. VDPSF will pay 8% of the total amount loaned by the Corporation as management fee at the end 
of each season. VDPSF agreed to provide E2.5 million as guarantee against these loans. The funds are kept in a separate bank account called Voluntary Deferred Pay 
Guarantee Fund with interest accruing to the VDPS fund. On these loans E 0 was outstanding as at 31 March 2012.
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62 Financial guarantees (continued)  

62.4 Komati Basin Water Authority (KOBWA)
 Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed to administer loans to communities in the Peri Reservoir Area around the Maguga Dam in an 

effort to promote entrepreneurial development thus strengthening the small enterprise sector. KOBWA will pay 10% of the total amount loaned by the Corporation 
as management fee on a quarterly basis from the date of disbursement of the first loan. KOBWA agreed to provide up to E1 million (2009:E 0.5million) as guarantee 
against these loans. The funds are kept in a separate bank account called KOBWA Scheme account with interest accruing to the KOBWA fund. Swaziland Development 
Finance Corporation Limited acts as signatories to this account. The carrying amount of these loans as at 31 March 2012 was E 178 685.61.

 
62.5 Shewula Account
 The values reflected as Shewula funds in the books refers to funds that were left by volunteers from Italy to FINCORP on behalf of Shewula people. These volunteers 

from Italy had come to the country to help set up a certain project for the Shewula people. They could not finish this project and there were funds remaining for the 
project. Realising that they could not give it to anyone there to oversee the completion of the project, they decided to give the money to FINCORP to advance to 
people seeking to start projects that will develop Shewula. So far no one has come up with a project to be advanced on in that respect.

 
62.6 Customer deposit Account
 FINCORP sometimes requires that some projects be secured by a deposit. These deposit monies are then banked with Swaziland Building Society in the clients 

name but with FINCORP holding the deposit book and the withdrawal rights of the funds from Swaziland Building Society. After the client has settled the funds are 
withdrawn and given to the client with interest. As at year end there were 117 (2011: 117) sub-accounts to the Customer Deposit Account.
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COMPANY   
   2012 2011
INCOME E’000 E’000

Interest receivable  50 326 55 834
Bad debts recovered  562 758
Sundry Income  8 929 5 731
Fair value adjustment on currency swap  209 1 045

    60 025 63 369
EXPENSES  
Advertising  910 794
Audit remuneration  628 484
Bank charges  380 272
Bad debts written off  15 945 26
Board expenses  303 533
Computer expenses  11 60
Consulting fees  4 33
Depreciation  738 770
Donations  90 106 
Facility fee charge  246 2 942
Impairment of loans and advances  (4 512) 17 178
Insurance  225 256
Interest expense  20 899 18 159
Legal fees  111 146
Loss on foreign exchange  417 239
Magazines and subscriptions  940 1 143
Motor vehicle expenses  719 632
Printing and stationery  394 160
Professional fees  380 254
Repairs and maintenance  89 204
Rent, water and light  810 855
Salaries and wages  14 090 14 242
Security  277 241
Sundry expenses  228 232
Telephone and postage  652 595
Loss on sale of fixed assets  32 55
Travelling and entertainment & international conferences  814  860

Total operating expenses  (55 820) 61 471
  
Profit before tax  4 206 1 898
Income tax expense  (3 155) (613)

Profit for the year  1 051 1 285 

DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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TAXATION SCHEDULE
for the year ended 31 March 2012

COMPANY

        2012 2011
         E’000 E’000

Profit before tax       4 206 1 898
  
Temporary differences  
  
Add back: Provision for leave pay 2012 2 157 769
  Provision for gratuity and performance bonus 2012 - -
  Interest on leases - 18
  Depreciation on leases - 162
  Donations 90 106
  Foreign exchanges losses 417 239
  Loss on disposal of assets 32 52
  Recoupment on transfer of assets to subsidiary 486 909
  Penalties & Interest - 19
  Provision for impairment reversed (4 512) -
  
Deduct: Provision for leave pay 2011 (769) (517)
  Provision for gratuity and performance bonus 2011 - (910)
  Lease payments - (529)
  Fair value gains on currency swaps (208) (1 045)
  Scrapping allowance on assets disposed (32) (100)

Taxable income/(loss) 1 867 1 069

  
Taxation at 30% 560 321

These schedules do not form part of the financial statements and are unaudited
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Historical performance of the Company is graphically illustrated as shown below.

Gross and Profit Margins  
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Gross margin for the years ended 2012 and 2011 have been declining compared 
to previous years.  This indicates that interest expense has been increasing 
over the last two financial years due to additional borrowings necessitated by 
increased demand for our services. The decline in gross margin is shown by the 
first graph below.

Net profits also dipped in the year ended 2011 due to economic challenges that 
the country faced, resulting in a decline in economic activities. Economic activity 
started to improve in 2012 as we have posted profits after tax of E7.2million.

The above graph indicates that cost of funds has relatively remained stable over the last three years. It further indicates that portfolio yield and average interest margin 
are positively correlated. Due to the fact that our pricing is primed linked, we have been successful in sourcing primed linked funding .
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Operating expense ratio measures the ability of the 
company to operate on its own without financial 
support in the form of grants and donations. This 
ration has been above 100% over the last five years as 

shown in the graph above indicating good efficiency 
in managing the resources that we use to monitor 
our portfolio. The organisation has been operating 
in an environment engulfed with several economic 

challenges for the last three years and despite these 
challenges,  – the level of provisions was reduced from 
13% of gross portfolio to 4%.
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General 
Purpose Loans

Year 2012 Year 2011 Year 2010

Disbursements Year 2012 Year 2011 Year 2010

Agricultural Loans          38 016 509 33 370 593          10 110 701 

SME Loans          48 997 802 39 272 705          26 518 613 

Sugar Cane Loans          50 258 894 60 391 155          32 609 802 

General Purpose Loans       200 161 278 71 393 296          69 150 363 

Micro Loans            1 366 915 314 358               663 248 

Disbursements 338 801 398 204 742 107 139 052 727

Cumulative Approvals

 Year 2008  Year 2009  Year 2010  Year 2011  Year 2012 

866 728 1 012 626 1 156 520 1 361 263 1 584 647 






